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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
The strategic objective of the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust (Trust)
is the development and management of the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre
(QEIIMC) as a nationally and internationally recognised campus of excellence in the
integrated provision of health and medical care, research and education.
With the commissioning of
the Perth Children’s Hospital
(PCH) in the period under
review, the QEIIMC has
matured, warranting the
review of the current Master
Planning instrument which
has guided the campus’s development over
the last decade.

• Common Area Amenity – continuing
upgrades of the campus gardens and
grounds including preliminary works on the
“green space” between PCH and the multi
deck carpark.

In 2018 the Trust is undertaking a new Master
Planning development and formulation
initiative to support the continuing
development of the campus into the future.
This new Master Planning exercise has seen
active engagement with key stakeholders
and campus tenants with its projected final
adoption later in 2018/2019 well on track.

The Trust continues to monitor and oversee its
performance against its strategic 2015-2020
objectives including:

Other specific aspects of the campus’s
development over the year under review
have included:
• Wayfinding – completion of stage 1 and
planning of roll out for stage 2 (precincts).
• Leasing – near completion of all tenant
lease arrangements on campus as well as
easement securement.
• Hospital Avenue/ “F” Block Upgrade –
demolition of “F” Block and upgrade of the
access to G Block from Hospital Avenue
and its interface with PCH. This will enhance
Hospital Avenue access and allow more
efficient traffic flow along the campus’s
primary arterial road.
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• Organisational Review – continuing analysis
of the Trust’s management structure with a
view to driving operational and governance
efficiencies during 2018/2019 and beyond.

• innovative and effective campus planning;
• effective campus management;
• facilitating the integration of clinical,
research and academic health outcomes;
• strong performance in the terms of its
statutory mandate;
• communication and brand positioning; and
• sustainability of role including financial
independence as well as environment, social
and governance outcomes.
I would like to acknowledge the work of the
Trust’s “Delegate”, North Metropolitan Health
Service, and its professional team headed over
the year under review by Mr Wayne Salvage,
Chief Executive North Metropolitan Health
Service and ably managed by Mr Bill Anderson
as the Trust’s executive officer.
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I also gratefully acknowledge the efforts and
contributions of the Trust’s board members
including Professors Peter Davies and Wendy
Erber, as University of Western Australia
nominees to the board, as well as Angela Kelly
and Alan Bansemer as Minister for Health
nominees to the board. Their professionalism
and guidance have been invaluable to the
Trust and its work.
I look forward to the Trust continuing to serve
the people of Western Australia into the future
consistent with its legislative mandate.

S Cole
Chairman
Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Date: 31 August 2018

The Trust is undertaking
a new Master Planning
development and
formulation initiative.
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OVERVIEW
Executive Summary
This Annual Report combines the activities of the Queen Elizabeth II Medical
Centre Trust (Trust) and North Metropolitan Health Service (NMHS) as its Delegate
under section 13 of the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Act 1966, as amended
(the Act).

The Year in Review
Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre
Redevelopment
The Perth Children’s Hospital commenced a
staged opening on 14 May 2018 by welcoming
its first outpatients, and as of 10 June 2018
is fully functional as the State’s dedicated
children’s hospital.
The commissioning of the Perth Children’s
Hospital in the period under review has
marked the conclusion of the existing Master
Plan and heralded the commencement of
developing a new Master Planning instrument
in 2018/19.
The development of the new Master Plan
involves active engagement with stakeholders
and seeking community feedback to inform
the continued physical development of the
campus. The Trust also seeks to facilitate,
encourage and foster the QEIIMC entities
collaboration and partnership to promote
QEIIMC as a nationally and internationally
recognised campus of excellence in the
integrated provision of health and medical
care, research and education.
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There has also been significant change to the
built form of the campus with the demolition
of F Block. This marks the first step of
development of this space as a new short term
drop off and entry piazza that will provide
a welcoming entrance and green space to
patients, visitors and staff accessing Sir
Charles Gairdner Hospital via the main traffic
thoroughfare of Hospital Avenue.
Perth Children’s Hospital (PCH)
Princess Margaret Hospital staff and patients
enjoyed a smooth transition to the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre and are settling in
to the world class facilities of the PCH. PCH is
the State’s new, dedicated children’s hospital
and the centrepiece of the child health care
system, providing 298 beds with the design of
the building allowing for future expansion. PCH
offers state of the art specialist paediatric care
for the children and adolescents of Western
Australia and features specially designed
interactive art works and play areas, both
internally and externally, stunning views into
Kings Park and an underground car park with
300 general purpose visitor parking bays.
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... A nationally and
internationally recognised
campus of excellence in
the integrated provision of
health and medical care,
research and education.

FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE
The Trust generates its own revenue to
meet its operating expenditure.
Revenue 2017/18
Car park
user fees 2%

Other 3%

Fines 4%
License
fees 36%

Outpatient clinics commenced on 14 May 2018,
with the first elective surgeries held on
28 May 2018. The commencement of
emergency department functions and the final
move from Princess Margaret Hospital to PCH
took place on 10 June 2018.

Tenant
charges 55%

F Block Demolition

Expenditure 2017/18

F Block, which was originally constructed in
1975 as the Institute of Radiotherapy, has been
demolished. F Block continued to serve as
the Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital (SCGH)
radiotherapy facility until the opening of the
SCGH Comprehensive Cancer Centre in 2013.
The new QEIIMC Cancer Centre combined
SCGH cancer services into one building to
facilitate an improved patient experience.
The centrally located prime space where
F Block once stood is adjacent to the busy
Hospital Avenue thoroughfare and is now
being repurposed into an exciting new
piazza. This space will feature a number of
short term parking bays as well as soft and
hard landscaping to enhance and improve
pedestrian access and egress to and from
E and G Blocks of SCGH.

Employee
benefits 36%
Other 20%

Consulting
fees 10%

Depreciation 9%
Repairs and
maintenance 25%

The above charts depict the revenue
and expenditure positions less the
“daylight” receipts and matching
outgoings through the Delegate’s account
associated with the At-Grade car park
agreement. These “daylight” receipts
(or pass through receipts) and matching
outgoings notionally inflate both the
revenue and expenditure components of
the financial statements.
The financial statements incorporated in
this report contain the full relevant details
used to generate these charts.
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OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE
Pursuant to the Act, the Trust is responsible for the development, management
and control of the QEIIMC Reserve. The day-to-day management and control
operations are physically undertaken by the Trust’s Delegate on behalf of the Trust.
The objectives of the Trust under its legislative
remit are to ensure the:
• QEIIMC Reserve, as established under
Section 6 of the Act, is developed within
the existing geographic, environmental
and functional constraints in a planned and
methodical way and in accordance with the
purpose of the Act as a medical centre of
national and international repute.
• Development, management and control of
the QEIIMC campus and Reserve is achieved
through a cooperative approach between
the Trust, campus tenants including the
relevant academic and professional schools
of learning providing teaching and research
resources to the Medical Centre, and the
State.
• Provision of appropriate on-campus
facilities for the clinical teaching of
undergraduates and graduates in medicine,
nursing and allied health professionals.
• Provision of appropriate ancillary facilities in
support of its primary objectives.
The Trust’s vision is for the QEIIMC to be
globally recognised as a centre of excellence in
health care, research and education.
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Enabling Legislation
The Trust is established under Section 7 of
the Act, to undertake the development,
management and control of the QEIIMC
Reserve for the purposes of the Act.
As a result of consequential administrative
changes to the new Health Services Act
2016 (WA), the Board of Sir Charles Gairdner
Hospital ceased to be the Trust’s Delegate
on 30 June 2016. The NMHS (Board)
was appointed the Trust’s new Delegate
on 1 July 2016, to exercise a range of
administrative powers in relation to managing
and controlling the QEIIMC campus on behalf
of the Trust. A new Delegation Instrument
confirming this appointment was published in
the Government Gazette on 28 June 2016.
The Delegate is responsible for the day to
day management and control of the QEIIMC
Reserve on behalf of the Trust, including the
general administration, management and
other statutory requirements in relation to the
Reserve land.
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Responsible Minister
The statutory responsibility for the Trust
is vested with the Minister for Health
Hon RH Cook MLA.

Organisational Structure
The functions of the Trust are delivered by
its Delegate through the following Branches:
Parking and Access; Gardens and Grounds;
External Security; Campus Maintenance;
TravelSmart and Trust Administration.

The Trust does not currently employ staff.
A team of NMHS (as Delegate) staff
members is seconded full time to the Trust to
oversee Delegate activities on the Reserve,
perform Trust activities for and provide
support services on behalf of, the Trust
Board. Other North Metropolitan Health
Service employees undertake such activities
as instructed to ensure efficient, effective
and timely management and control of the
QEIIMC Reserve for the Trust.

Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust Operational Structure as at 30 June 2018

Minister for Health

QEIIMC Trust Board
NMHS
‘Delegate’
Project Director

Business Manager

Operations Manager

Administration

Parking Administration

Gardens & Grounds

At-Grade Car Park
Monitoring
External Security
(NMHS)
TravelSmart
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Board of Management
As set out in the Act, the Trust Board
consists of five members:
• A Chairman – appointed by the
Governor on written nomination of the
Minister for Health and the University
of Western Australia Senate, to hold
office during the Governor’s pleasure.
• Two members – appointed by the
Governor on the written nomination of
the Minister for Health to hold office
during the Governor’s pleasure.
• Two members – appointed by
The University of Western Australia
Senate to hold office during
its pleasure.

MR STEVEN COLE
Appointed as Chairman in November 2008.
Mr Cole has over 40 years of professional,
corporate and business experience
through senior legal consultancy, as well
as a range of executive management and
non-executive appointments.
Among his corporate appointments, he is
currently Chair of ASX listed Neometals
Limited, Chair of Perth Markets Limited and
is a Board Member of the ASX listed Matrix
Composites and Engineering Limited as well as
the Chamber of Commerce and Industry WA.
Mr Cole has attended all [ten] board meetings
throughout the year.
Mr Cole is also a member of the QEII Medical
Centre Trust Audit and Risk Management
Sub Committee and has attended all [five]
sub-committee meetings throughout the year.
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PROFESSOR PETER DAVIES

MS ANGELA KELLY

Appointed as a member in March 2016,
Professor Davies also served in the roles of
Deputy Board Chair and Chair of the Audit and
Risk Management Sub Committee.

Appointed as a member in August 2015.

Professor Davies was the Pro Vice-Chancellor
(Research) at The University of Western
Australia (UWA) and Professor of Freshwater
Ecology of the Centre of Excellence during the
year under review.
Professor Davies attended five of a possible
nine board meetings and attended two of a
possible four Audit and Risk Management Sub
Committee meetings throughout the year.
Professor Davies retired from the Trust at the
end of June 2018.

Ms Angela Kelly has held the role of Assistant
Director General Purchasing and System
Performance since its creation in April 2015.
A graduate in Economics from the University
of Western Australia (UWA), and with more
than 20 years’ experience in the public health
system, Ms Kelly has held a number of senior
executive positions within the Department
of Health. These include Executive Director
Resourcing and Performance, Director Health
Infrastructure Unit and Director of Program
Integration for the Fiona Stanley Hospital
Project. Ms Kelly was appointed acting Chief
Executive of NMHS in April 2018 during which
time she took a leave of absence from the
Trust Board.
Ms Kelly has attended four of a possible six
board meetings throughout the year.
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PROFESSOR WENDY ERBER

MR ALAN BANSEMER

Appointed as a member in March 2016.

Appointed as a member in December 2016.

Professor Erber took up her current
appointment as Dean of the Faculty of Health
and Medical Sciences at The University of
Western Australia (UWA) in December 2015.

Mr Alan Bansemer has over 35 years'
experience in the health sector, including
six years as the West Australian Health
Commissioner and eight years as the Deputy
Secretary to the Commonwealth Department
of Human Services and Health.

Professor Erber graduated in Medicine from
the University of Sydney and undertook her
Haematology training at the Royal North
Shore Hospital of Sydney and the University
of Oxford (as a Rhodes Scholar). In Oxford
her research led to a Doctorate of Philosophy.
She has held Consultant Haematologist posts
in Western Australia and in Cambridge, UK.
She took up her UWA position as Professor
of Pathology and Laboratory Medicine in 2011
before being appointed Dean.
Professor Erber has attended nine of a
possible ten board meetings throughout
the year.
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Mr Bansemer has chaired a number
of committees including the Medicare
Schedule Review Board and General Practice
Consultative Committee. In addition, he has
served as a member of numerous health
advisory committees including the Australian
Health Ministers’ Advisory Council, Health
Insurance Commission and Australian Institute
of Health and Welfare.
Mr Bansemer has attended all ten board
meetings throughout the year.
Mr Bansemer is also a member of the Audit
and Risk Management Sub Committee
and has attended three of a possible four
subcommittee meetings throughout the year.
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Other Key Legislation impacting on the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Western Australian State Acts

Australian Commonwealth Acts

• Auditor General Act 2006
• Contaminated Sites Act 2003

• A New Tax System (Goods and
Services Tax) Act 1999

• Disability Services Act 1993

• Copyright Act 1968

• Electricity Corporations Act 2005

• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986

• Energy Operators (Powers) Act 1979

• Trade Practices Act 1975

• Equal Opportunity Act 1984

The financial administration of the Trust and its
Delegate are undertaken in conjunction with
Health Support Services (HSS). The Delegate,
the Trust and HSS have complied with the
requirements of the Financial Management
Act 2006 and every other written law, and
exercised controls which provide reasonable
assurance that the receipt and expenditure of
moneys and the acquisition and disposal of
public property and incurring of liability have
been in accordance with legislative provisions.

• Evidence Act 1906
• Financial Management Act 2006
• Freedom of Information Act 1992
• Health Services Act 2016
• Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990
• Hospitals and Health Services Act 1927
• Land Administration Act 1997
• Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951
• Local Government Act 1995
• Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
• Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
• Public Sector Management Act 1994

At the date of signing, the Trust is not aware
of any circumstances which would render
the particulars included in this statement
misleading or inaccurate.

• Road Traffic Act 1974
• State Records Act 2000
• State Supply Commission Act 1991
• Water Corporations Act 1995

QEIIMC Trust Annual Report 2017/2018
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AGENCY PERFORMANCE
Reports on Operations
Campus Management and Planning
Master planning
With the completion of a series of major
developments on campus, the objectives
of the 2010 Trust Master Plan have been
accomplished and the Trust has commenced
developing a new Master Planning instrument.
Since 2010, the built form of the QEIIMC
has undergone major redevelopments and
improvements including:
 A new Central Energy Plant;
 A Comprehensive Cancer Centre;
 New PathWest laboratories;
 A new Mental Health Unit;
 The Harry Perkins Institute of
Medical Research;
 The Western Power Substation;
 Ronald McDonald House;
 A Multi-Deck Car Park;
 The Ralph and Patricia Sarich Neuroscience
Research Institute; and
 Perth Children’s Hospital.
The delivery of these significant infrastructure
developments and extensive improvements
in medical, research and teaching facilities
on campus have transformed the QEIIMC
campus. The Trust is now preparing to move
into a new phase of Master Planning for the
QEIIMC reserve covering decades to come.
The development of the new Master Plan
commenced during the 2017/18 financial year
with the Trust appointing Hames Sharley to
lead the Master Planning process.
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Initial phases of the new Master Plan
development have included engaging with
stakeholders via a range of methods.
These outreach methods and communications
have been designed both to encourage
engagement and to maximise the number and
breadth of people providing input. This has
included launching the QEIIMC Futures
website (qeiimcfutures.com.au), conducting
surveys, hosting workshops and holding
pop-up stalls at multiple locations across the
campus. The result has been a broad look into
the diverse perspectives and experiences of
campus users including staff from medical,
educational, research and other tenants,
visitors, patients, community groups and local
residents from the surroundings areas.
Other groups and organisations consulted
during this period include State Government
agencies, local councils, surrounding hospitals
and health service providers, Kings Park
Authority, universities, research organisations
and the local community.
This feedback will be instrumental in informing
a fresh and holistic Master Plan that continues
to sustainably and innovatively develop the
QEIIMC as a world class centre of healthcare,
medical research and education that engages
with and balances the needs of campus users,
and the local community.

QEIIMC Trust Annual Report 2017/2018
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Leases

Wayfinding

Progress continued in reviewing and
consolidating lease arrangements for the
campus’s tenants with ground leases for most
tenants now in place.

The significant recent developments on the
already large and complex QEIIMC campus
drives the need for improved signage to help
patients, visitors and staff locate and reach
their destinations with ease.

Leases with NMHS regarding the premises
occupied by Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital and
other NMHS operations for the remaining 3 of
the 18 ground leases were executed during the
year under review. NMHS is negotiating with
the Trust in relation to the extension of a lease
for TT Block, currently housing child–care
facilities on campus on Verdun Street.
The last remaining outstanding tenancy
arrangements are being formalised,
notably with UWA in order to finalise its
present leasehold entitlements and to
settle tenancy options for the foreseeable
future. These arrangements are expected
to be settled in the first half of the 2018/19
financial year.

The Trust engaged professional consultants,
Minale Tattersfield, to undertake a
“wayfinding” review of the Campus, and
develop a set of guidelines that will provide
a framework of effective solutions to assist
people to find their way around the campus.
These approved wayfinding guidelines
include a staged implementation plan
according to priority elements and resourcing.
Stakeholders across the campus have been
kept informed of wayfinding developments
throughout each stage of the review and
upgrades and feedback on wayfinding matters
has been encouraged.
The roll out of the first stage of the wayfinding
implementation plan has been completed.
Stage one saw the installation of Hospital
Avenue marker signage along with major
perimeter signage including along Verdun
Street and Gairdner Drive. The new signage
has improved both vehicle access and the
overall appearance of the campus by providing
clear, consistent direction to important
locations. The consistent, eye-catching
branding and design allows for a focus on
crucial wayfinding messages which will
assist with the campus user experience when
accessing the QEIIMC.
The second stage of the wayfinding
implementation plan to update and improve
pedestrian wayfinding signage commenced
in early 2018. Second stage signage will be
incrementally introduced across campus as
planning requirements — including stakeholder
consultation, cost and other approvals and
implementation programming permit.
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Tenant Charging
The application of the Trust’s tenant
“outgoings” charging model where
tenants actively contribute to the cost
of providing common area facilities and
services continues.
The Child and Adolescent Health Service,
through its flagship Perth Children’s Hospital
are notable recent additions to the tenant
charging regime (commencing 1 July 2017).
The 2017/18 financial year is the third year in
which the Trust has applied a full recovery
methodology; prior to this there was a phased
implementation to introduce tenants to
the regime which commenced in July 2013.
A standard Site Services Agreement (SSA) has
been developed to formalise this process and
has been included in all lease negotiations. The
SSA is the basis of the contractual agreement
for the Trust/tenant relationship regarding
tenant charging.
The SSA and tenant charging regime
enables the Trust to provide appropriate
common onsite facilities and services on a
sustainable basis.

Parking and sustainable access
Parking
The QEIIMC built form has undergone
significant changes with the completion of
recent major developments. The provision
of sustainable parking and access to the
campus remain priorities for all stakeholders.
The QEIIMC Parking Branch has continued
to align its parking management strategy
with the WA Health Access and Parking
Strategy for Health Campuses in the Perth
Metropolitan Area.
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Between 2013 and 2015, there was excess
parking available within QEIIMC for both
staff and visitors due to the operation of
the QEIIMC Capella managed Multi Deck
Car Park (MDCP), offering 3088 bays in
addition to “At Grade” bays already available.
Excess capacity of parking at QEIIMC
continued between 2015 and 2018 due to the
delayed opening of PCH and resulted in the
following benefits:
• Excess parking availability benefit to staff
on the QEIIMC for an additional 2.5 years,
including for “core” hour workers.
Pursuant to condition 2 of the approval of
Development Application to commence
development of the MDCP by the Western
Australian Planning Commission (WAPC)
dated 28 April 2011, the WAPC restricted
the number of parking bays to be provided
within the QEIIMC to 5,350 (inclusive of 4,000
for staff, 150 “exempt” and 1,200 therefore
for visitors), unless otherwise approved by
WAPC. No other approval has been provided
by WAPC. The WAPC approval decision was,
in part, made to ensure a sustainable limit of
parking bays for this campus given the current
level of development, access road capabilities
and “saturation” modelling. This takes into
consideration the current available public
transport options and looks toward an increase
in public transport use in favour of single
occupant vehicle use.
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Alternative Transport
With the recent completion of major
developments on campus, utilisation of public
transport to access the QEIIMC has increased,
particularly amongst staff members. As the
number of parking bays available at the
QEIIMC is limited by the current sustainable
planning requirements, the Trust has, within its
authority, committed to facilitating alternative
transport methods. This includes advocating
for public transport and forms of active
transport such as cycling and walking.
To assist visitors, and new and existing
staff at the QEIIMC with public transport,
the TravelSmart team has been on hand
providing information and assistance with
route planning and SmartRider queries. In the
lead up to the move to PCH, TravelSmart
staff provided access and transport options
at a series of information sessions and
forums at Princess Margaret Hospital and
the Telethon Kids Institute. TravelSmart staff
members are available to answer questions
and discuss alternative transport options with
staff, and offer resources such as maps and
information sheets.
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Frequent communications advising of public
transport connections have been published
via the QEIIMC Trust Newsletters, SCGH
Globals, PCH Newsletters and the Trust
tenant mailing list. Common public transport
routes are displayed on the Trust campus
TV screens. Alternative access pop-up stalls
have been provided on Watling Walk and at
PCH. The TravelSmart Junction office is open
weekdays, for all staff, visitors and patients.
Through the TravelSmart Junction, QEIIMC
staff have been able to purchase SmartRider
cards, and eligible staff have also been able
to submit Corporate SmartRider applications
for an additional discount subsidised by the
Metropolitan Access and Parking Department.
TravelSmart also assists staff with access
to the End of Trip facilities on campus and
installed improvements to external bike
parking in several locations including the
construction of a bike shelter in Car Park 7
which houses nearly 50 bikes. These additional
bike parking areas will accommodate overflow
from popular bike parking areas at the QEIIMC.
The TravelSmart Hire Bike Fleet is available for
prospective cyclists who would like to ride to
work without committing to purchasing a bike
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or e-bike without first trialling their commute.
The e-bikes are also on hand for QEIIMC
staff going off-campus for meetings, as an
alternative to parking and driving.
The Trust has been liaising with the Public
Transport Authority (PTA) regarding
increasing public transport options for
QEIIMC visitors and staff. PTA continuously
monitors the public transport access to the
medical centre. The increased frequency of
bus services that were allocated during the
period of construction at PCH to transport
construction workers to campus have been
retained to now accommodate new PCH staff.
Contingency buses have been held in reserve
in the event of peak time services filling up
along with a greater number of reticulated
buses being assigned to routes to the campus.
The ongoing demand for services will continue
to inform routes and timetables.

Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Volunteer
Buggy Drivers
The Trust provides an internal buggy transport
service. Staffed by a group of ten volunteers,
one of two electric powered buggies operates
Monday to Friday providing a much needed
service for patients and members of the
general public needing help to get around the
28 hectare campus. While keeping an eye out
for patients and visitors who may need help
around campus, the volunteers also answer
a mobile phone which can be called to request
a pickup.
This service is under constant review,
with patient, visitor, staff and volunteer
feedback providing valuable insights into
how the buggies can best serve them.
Improvements have included the purchase of
a new vehicle, chosen for ease of navigating
tight corners and for being quiet running, and
new buggy ‘business cards’ are now supplied
to help patients and visitors keep the contact
number on hand.
The enthusiastic and dedicated volunteers
contribute a combined total of over 1700
hours of service per year and individually,
hold volunteering experience varying from
one year, to twenty years at the QEIIMC.
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Smoke free campus
WA Health policy requires all of its sites to
be smoke free. The sprawling 28 hectare
QEIIMC campus has an estimated turnover
of over 12,000 people in a 24 hour period.
Achieving and maintaining a smoke free
campus is a significant challenge given its
size, numerous outdoor common areas and
the lack of convenient access to appropriate
off-campus areas for those who choose
to smoke.
In late 2017, a Smoke Free Contractor was
engaged by the Trust on an ongoing basis to
educate visitors and remind staff, visitors and
patients on campus about the Government’s
No Smoking Policy and QEIIMC By-Laws in
order to provide a smoke free environment
for the health and comfort of everyone at
the QEIIMC.
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The Trust is committed to providing a healthy,
supportive environment and continues to
explore options and implement initiatives
to achieve smoke free campus status.
The effectiveness of the current Smoke Free
initiatives (including the physical presence and
educational message provided by the Smoke
Free Contractor) is reviewed by the Campus
Smoke Free advisory committee made up of
interested tenant representatives. The Trust
and campus stakeholders regularly seek new
ways to improve effectiveness of messaging
on this important, but difficult topic.
Six monthly status reports are provided
to government.
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Communications
Maps, brochures and publications
The Trust provides an extensive suite of maps
and published material, in both printed and
electronic format, to inform the community
of organisations, facilities and services on the
campus. The QEIIMC maps are available in
print and on the QEIIMC website. The website
map is interactive enabling users to highlight
specific items of interest. In 2018 the QEIIMC
map underwent updates and redistribution
across campus in order to represent the
completed Perth Children’s Hospital amongst
other changes. Changes to the interactive
website map will be implemented accordingly.
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To address some of the major changes to
campus, an Access Booklet to assist existing,
new and future staff with access to and
around the campus is also being developed.
Distribution is expected to take place early
in the 2018/19 financial year. A number of
cycling and TravelSmart brochures have been
developed primarily to increase staff and
student awareness of initiatives, programs
and services regarding alternative commuting
options. Visitors have also found the
information useful.
These resources are reviewed and updated
regularly to include new developments on the
campus and to address user feedback.
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... beautiful green spaces
and bringing vast
improvements to the visual
appeal of the campus.
On-line Communications
The QEIIMC website provides a range of
information about the campus to visitors,
patients, students, staff and tenants. Since its
launch in 2013/14, the website has gone
through multiple reviews and updates –
the most substantial of these were alterations
made to bring it into line with the Web
Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0.
The website has now reached the AA level
of conformance required by the Website
Governance Framework. Website content is
kept up-to-date and relevant through regular
assessment and through feedback from users
via a comment box provided on the website.
Regular electronic news bulletins are sent to
QEIIMC’s tenants, providing short, targeted
and timely information and updates regarding
services and service disruptions around the
campus. Newsletters are also circulated
electronically to tenants to provide updates
on recent and upcoming Trust projects
and events.
The Trust’s communications strategy was
updated in anticipation of additional patients,
visitors and staff post commissioning of the
new Perth Children’s Hospital.

Gardens and Grounds
The Trust is committed to providing a high
quality public environment that supports
the activities and aspirations of the QEIIMC’s
diverse community of health care, research
and educational organisations.
The 2017/18 financial year has seen
substantial, continued improvements to the
gardens and grounds on campus with the
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completion of Stages 2 and 3 of the QEIIMC
Landscaping Plan. These works included
improvements to the Hospital Avenue/Monash
Avenue intersection and the Hospital
Avenue/Aberdare Road intersection which
play an important role in framing the medical
centre and acting as a first impression to many
campus users. Works included the clearance
of dead vegetation and the installation of
new turf and new garden beds featuring
native plants including kangaroo paws and
grass trees.
Repaving works have been completed on
Gairdner Drive and between the Lions Eye
Institute and V Block creating safer and more
visually appealing walkways. New benches and
rest areas have been installed near P Block, V
Block, T Block and in the Sarich Neuroscience
Research Institute courtyard, the latter of
which also included planting a ‘luscious’
tristaniopsis laurina tree.
Many other areas have undergone
considerable improvements with refreshed
garden beds and new plants transforming
previously overlooked corners into beautiful
green spaces and bringing vast improvements
to the visual appeal of the campus.
Although not part of the QEIIMC, the Trust
utilises the adjacent Water Corporation
compensating basin on Aberdare Road to
provide a filtered source of water for its
grounds reticulation system. The Trust also
landscapes the area surrounding this “lake” to
improve its aesthetic appeal for local residents,
patients, visitors and staff. Stormwater
drainage is supplemented by bore water
extracted on the campus.
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SIGNIFICANT ISSUES
IMPACTING THE QUEEN
ELIZABETH II MEDICAL
CENTRE TRUST
Current and emerging
issues and trends
Services, Facilities and Infrastructure
The QEIIMC is an extremely vibrant and
busy medical centre with an estimated over
1.8 million vehicle traffic movements at the
campus annually and over 12,000 employees
working daily on the Campus.
The number of people travelling to and
using the QEIIMC facilities continues to rise.
For instance, the opening of the new Perth
Children’s Hospital in the year under review
has generated an additional estimated 3000
staff movements per day, in addition to
patient and visitor movements. Pressure on
existing operations and infrastructure require
ongoing upgrades and review, where regular
maintenance programs are undertaken and
assets are refurbished as funding allows.

Funding and Revenue
One of the Trust’s main objectives is to
maintain and improve financial sustainability
and sound governance.
The Trust is strategically positioning and
managing its funding and revenue within the
following key parameters:
• License fees from the Multi-Deck car park
will meet underlying corporate overheads,
service and outgoing expenses.
• Revenue from its campus “outgoings”
tenant charging arrangements will meet
26

routine campus management, maintenance
and gardening expenses as well as minor
capital work expenses for the campus on an
equitable allocation basis.
The Trust continues its business development
program focusing on implementing sustainable
funding strategies for the short and long term
enhancement of the QEIIMC.
Sufficient staff resources in a constrained
environment continue to impact the timely
completion of some activities and projects.
The Trust recently undertook a prioritization
of activities and projects to ensure available
resources are focussed on high priority
projects and essential activities.

Servicing a sustainable environment
The availability of funds and resources places
prudential limitations on the capacity of
the Trust to expeditiously meet some of its
campus objectives.
The Trust has liaised with the Department
of Planning as part of the Government’s
“Direction 2031” project to ensure the QEIIMC
will be able to respond to traffic demands in a
sustainable way in the medium and long term.
The Trust continues to be involved as a
critical stakeholder along with UWA and local
councils, with the debate over the type and
planning of light rail/mass public transport
system to assist in transporting people to,
from and around the QEIIMC campus, and
surrounding precinct.
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DISCLOSURE AND
LEGAL COMPLIANCE
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note

2018
$

2017
$

3.1
9.3
5.1
3.2
3.3
3.4

2,202,449
58,976
555,785
1,594,556
2,021,087
1,922,031
8,354,884

1,957,736
57,863
547,479
1,601,598
2,102,762
1,991,573
8,259,011

4.2
4.3
4.4

2,421,485
2,266,321
3,717,225

2,525,823
2,253,227
2,859,366

8,405,031

7,638,416

50,147

(620,595)

647,114
40,950
688,064

674,413
(14,233)
84,232
744,412

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

738,211

123,817

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation reserve
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)

(32,000)
(32,000)

-

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD

706,211

123,817

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Board member remuneration
Depreciation expense
Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment
Management fees
Other expenses
Total cost of services
INCOME

Revenue
Car park user fees and fines
Car park operator licence fees
Other revenue
Total revenue

Total income other than income from State Government
NET INCOME/(COST) OF SERVICES
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations
Assets assumed/(transferred)
Services received free of charge
Total income from State Government

4.1.1
4.1.2
4.1.3

8,405,031

7,638,416

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust

Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Amounts receivable for services
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets

Note

2018
$

2017
$

7.1
6.1
6.3

10,021,137
111,246
3,388
10,135,771

9,271,061
298,271
3,388
9,572,720

7.1
6.2
5.1

15,000
9,435,159
11,432,856
20,883,015

8,000
8,887,160
11,265,862
20,161,022

31,018,786

29,733,742

6.4
3.1
6.5

977,390
235,529
400
1,213,319

431,896
215,509
200
647,605

3.1

89,518

76,399

1,302,837

724,004

29,715,949

29,009,738

33,026,508
(3,310,559)

33,058,508
(4,048,770)

29,715,949

29,009,738

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Employee benefits provisions
Other liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefits provisions
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

9.8
9.8

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note

RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period
Balance at end of period

9.8.1

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (DEFICIT)
Balance at start of period
Surplus/(deficit) for the period
Balance at end of period

9.8.2

TOTAL EQUITY
Balance at start of period
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period
Balance at end of period

2018

2017

$

$

33,058,508
(32,000)
33,026,508

33,058,508
33,058,508

(4,048,770)
738,211
(3,310,559)

(4,172,587)
123,817
(4,048,770)

29,009,738
706,211
29,715,949

28,885,921
123,817
29,009,738

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note

2018
$
Inflows
(Outflows)

2017
$
Inflows
(Outflows)

99,114
99,114

107,851
107,851

(2,160,696)
(58,976)
(5,377,078)

(1,911,984)
(57,863)
(5,573,506)

2,428,992
2,266,321
3,900,567
999,130

2,531,844
2,253,227
2,573,255
(185,027)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Payment for purchase of non-current physical assets

(341,168)

(336,586)

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities

(341,168)

(336,586)

757,076

(413,762)

9,279,061

9,692,823

10,036,137

9,279,061

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations
Net cash provided by State Government

7.1.3

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Board member remuneration
Supplies and services
Receipts
Receipts from customers
Car park operator licence fees
Other receipts
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

7.1.2

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD

7.1.1

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
1

Basis of preparation
The Queen Elizabeth Medical Centre Trust ("Trust") is a WA Government entity and is controlled by the State of Western Australia, which
is the ultimate parent. The entity is a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective).
These annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Accountable Authority of the agency on 31 August 2018.
The reporting entity comprises the Trust's accounts and Delegate's accounts maintained under section 13 of the Queen Elizabeth II
Medical Centre Act 1966 .
The Board of Management of the Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital was appointed in 1986 as the ‘Delegate’ under section 13 of the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre Act to perform the functions of the Trust. Subsequent changes in the Western Australian Health system saw
the demise of hospital boards and, as of 1 July 2016 the new Health Services Act (WA) created Health Service statutory bodies to take
over certain Health Services roles. The Health Service statutory body "North Metropolitan Health Service" has been designated with the
responsibility for Delegate's activities. The Delegate undertakes transactions and holds assets and liabilities on behalf of the Trust.
Following advice from the State Solicitor's Office, the Delegate prepared the financial statements for the first time in the 2014-15 financial
year on the basis that it is a non-reporting entity because there are no users dependent on a general purpose financial report. The
financial report furnished to the Trust under section 13 (2i) of the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Act is therefore a special purpose
financial report.
Statement of compliance
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
1)
2)
3)
4)

The Financial Management Act 2006 (FMA)
The Treasurer’s Instructions (the Instructions or TI)
Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) including applicable interpretations
Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable for not-for-profit entities have been applied.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions (the Instructions) take precedence over AAS. Several AAS are
modified by the Instructions to vary application, disclosure format and wording. Where modification is required and has had a material or
significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.
Basis of preparation
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars applying the accrual basis of accounting and using the historical cost
convention. Certain balances will apply a different measurement basis (such as the fair value basis). Where this is the case the different
measurement basis is disclosed in the associated note. All values are rounded to the nearest dollar ($).
Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about financial information being presented. The significant
judgements and estimates made in the preparation of these financial statements are disclosed in the notes where amounts affected by
those judgements and/or estimates are disclosed. Estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived
from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of
equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the
owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.
Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 ‘Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned
Public Sector Entities’ and have been credited directly to Contributed equity.
The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated
as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
2

The Trust outputs
Notes
The Trust's objectives

2.1

How the Trust operates
This section includes information regarding the nature of funding the Trust receives and how this funding is utilised to achieve the Trustʼs
objectives. This note also provides the distinction between controlled funding and administered funding:
2.1

The Trust's objectives

Objective
The objectives of the trust is to ensure the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre (QEIIMC) Reserve is developed within the existing
geographic, environmental and functional constraints in a planned and methodical way and in accordance with the purpose of the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre Act 1966.
The Trust is also responsible for ensuring the development of the QEIIMC site is achieved through a cooperative approach between the
QEIIMC Trust, site tenants, and the relevant academic and professional schools of learning providing teaching and research resources to
the Medical Centre and the State as well as the provision of appropriate onsite facilities to support the clinical teaching of undergraduates
and graduates in medicine, nursing and allied health profession.
To gain an understanding as to how the Trust obtains it's funding please see note 4 Our funding sources
The trust has only one service which is the development, management and administration of the QEIIMC site.

6
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
3

Use of our funding
Expenses incurred in the delivery of services
This section provides additional information about how the Trustʼs funding is applied and the accounting policies that are relevant for an
understanding of the items recognised in the financial statements. The primary expenses incurred by the Trust in achieving its objectives
and the relevant notes are:

Employee benefits expense
Employee benefits provisions
Repairs, maintenance and consumable
Management Fees
Other expenses

Notes

2018
$

2017
$

3.1 (a)
3.1 (b)
3.2
3.3
3.4

2,202,449
325,047
1,594,556
2,021,087
1,922,031

1,957,736
291,908
1,601,598
2,102,762
1,991,573

2018
$

2017
$

2,052,759

1,827,267

149,690
2,202,449

130,469
1,957,736

3.1(a) Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages (a)

Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b)

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefits to employees and the value of superannuation contribution component for leave entitlements.
The Trust did not pay any fringe benefits tax during the reporting period.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Superannuation funds.
Salaries and wages are paid to employees provided to the Trust by the North Metropolitan Health Service in its capacity as the Delegate.
Employee expenses include all costs related to employment including wages and salaries, fringe benefits tax, and leave entitlements.
Superannuation: The amount recognised in profit or loss of the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer contributions
paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the GESBs, or other superannuation funds. The employer contribution paid to the
Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) in respect of the GSS is paid back into the Consolidated Account by the GESB.
GSS (concurrent contributions) is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. It is
however a defined contribution plan for Trust purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Trust to
GESB extinguishes the Trustʼs obligations to the related superannuation liability.
The Trust does not recognise any defined benefit liabilities because it has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating
to its employees. The Liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who
transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions
made by the Trust to the GESB.
The GESB and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with
legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to
commencement and implementation dates.

7
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018

2018
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions

2017
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Current
(a)
Annual leave
(b)
Long service leave
Non-current
(b)
Long service leave
Total employee benefits provisions

164,890
70,639

150,798
64,711

235,529

215,509

89,518

76,399

325,047

291,908

In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years or to age 65 if earlier.
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
125,315
39,575
164,890

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

111,590
39,208
150,798

The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110

8
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(b) Employee
benefits
provisions
benefits
provisions
(continued)
3.1 (b)3.1Employee

2018
2018
$$

2017
2017
$$

Provisionfor
is made
for benefits
accruing
to employees
in respect
of wages
andas
salaries,
annual
leave
longtoservice
services
The provision
long service
leave
liabilities
are calculated
at present
value
the Trust
does
not and
expect
whollyleave
settlefor
the
amounts
up toThe
the reporting
date and
recorded astaking
an expense
during the
the value
services
delivered.
withinrendered
12 months.
present value
is measured
into account
theperiod
present
of are
expected
future payments to be made in
relation to services provided by employees up to the reporting date. These payments are estimated using the remuneration rate expected
Current
to apply
at the time of settlement, and discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual
with terms
to leave
maturity
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave

Employment on-costs (workersʼ compensation insurance) are not employee benefits and are recognised 235,529
separately as liabilities
and
215,509
expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ʻOther expensesʼ and are
not included
as part of the Trustʼs ʻEmployee benefits expenseʼ. Any related liability is included in ʻEmployment on-costs provisionʼ.
Non-current
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long service leave
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant
risk ofTotal
causing
a material
adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
employee
benefits
provisions
325,047
291,908
Any gain
or loss following
revaluation
the present
value of long
serviceare
leave
liabilities
is recognised
employee
expense.
In estimating
the non-current
longofservice
leave liabilities,
employees
assumed
to leave
the Trust as
each
year on benefits
account of
resignation
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
leave benefits
which they are
fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
3.2 Employees
Repairs, with
maintenance
and to
consumable
equipment
years or to age 65 if earlier.
Repairs and maintenance
1,583,669
1,560,647
Other estimations
expected future salary40,951
rates,
Consumable
equipmentand assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include 10,887
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
1,594,556
1,601,598
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
3.3

(a)Management
Annual leave Fees
liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
2,021,087
2,102,762
Management fees for At-Grade Car Parks (a)
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
(a) SeeMore
note than
4.2 'Car
park user
fees
furtherperiod
information.
12 months
after
the and
end fines'
of the for
reporting

3.4

125,315
39,575
164,890

111,590
39,208
150,798

Other expenses
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
6,674
8,078
Communications

43,798
28,675
Computer services
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities
not
650,223 as the Trust does
623,012
Consultancies
have an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
(a)
224,742
215,358
Direct invoice parking bays

Pre-conditional
and for
conditional
long(a) service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities118,603
because the Trust 136,258
has an
Chargeable
parking bays
user groups
unconditional
right
to
defer
the
settlement
of
the
liability
until
the
employee
has
completed
the
requisite
years
of
service.
Reversal of impairment for receivables (note 6.1.1)
(3,470)
(5,828)
(b)
35,317
9,550
Employee related expenses
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Legal expenses
70,261
128,252
Motor vehicle
5,415
7,614
Within expenses
12 months of the end of the reporting period
14,834
12,942
More
thanexpenses
12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
Operating
lease
26,410
19,358
160,157
141,110
Printing and stationery
35,172
38,665
Purchase of external services
417,422
419,689

Public transport expenses

Services received free of charge
Other

90,976

88,153

159,538
1,922,031

190,507
1,991,573

40,950

84,232

(a) Capella charges for the use of the Direct Invoice Parking Bays by staff and the use of non-exempt bays by specific user groups.
(b) Includes staff development, workers' compensation insurance and transport costs. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the
provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2018
For the year ended 30 June 2018

4

Our funding sources

2018
$

2017
$

2018
$

2017
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
This section provides additional information about how the Trust obtains its funding and the relevant accounting policy notes that govern
the
recognition
andfor
measurement
of thistofunding.
Thein
primary
received
by the Trust
andleave
the relevant
are:leave for services
Provision
is made
benefits accruing
employees
respectincome
of wages
and salaries,
annual
and longnotes
service
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.

Current
(a)
Annual leave
Income from State Government
(b)
Long service leave
Service appropriations
Assets assumed/(transferred)
Services received free of charge
Non-current
Car park user fees and
fines
(b)
Longpark
service
leavelicence fees
Car
operator
Other revenue
Total employee benefits provisions

Notes
4.1
4.1.1
4.1.2
4.1.3
4.2
4.3
4.4

164,890
70,639
647,114
235,52940,950
2,421,485
89,518
2,266,321
3,717,225
325,047

150,798
64,711
674,413
215,509
(14,233)
84,232
2,525,823
76,399
2,253,227
2,859,366
291,908

In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year2018
on account of resignation
2017
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over
a five year period.
$
$
Employees
with from
leaveState
benefits
to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
4.1
Income
Government
years or to age 65 if earlier.

4.1.1 Service appropriations
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
674,413
Service
(funding
via the
Department
of Health)
discountappropriations
rates, employee
retention
rates
and expected
future payments. Changes in these estimations and647,114
assumptions may impact
on
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Service Appropriations: are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Trust gains control of the appropriated funds.
The
Trust gains
of appropriated
at as
thethere
timeisthose
funds are deposited
to the
bank account
or credited
to the
'Amounts
(a) Annual
leavecontrol
liabilities:
Classified asfunds
current
no unconditional
right to defer
settlement
for at least
12 months
after
the end
receivable
for services'
(holding account)
held that
at Treasury.
of the reporting
period. Assessments
indicate
actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Service
fundend
theofnet
of services
125,315
Withinappropriations
12 months of the
thecost
reporting
perioddelivered. Appropriation revenue comprises the following:
39,575
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
• Cash component; and
164,890
• A receivable (asset).

111,590
39,208
150,798

The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
The
receivable
(holding
account
– note 6.2) comprises the following:
employees
up to
the reporting
date.

• The budgeted depreciation expense for the year; and
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
• Any agreed increase in leave liabilities during the year.
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
4.1.2 Assets assumed/(transferred)
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
right
to defer to
theNorth
settlement
of the liability
the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
-unconditional
Transfer plant
equipment
Metropolitan
Health until
Service
(14,233)
Assessments transfers
indicate that
actual(including
settlementgrants)
of the and
liabilities
is expected
occurgovernment
as follows: agencies are reported under Income from
Discretionary
of assets
liabilities
betweentoState
State Government. Transfers of assets and liabilities in relation to a restructure of administrative arrangements are recognised as
distribution
owners
transferor
and contribution
non-discretionary non-12,942
Within 12to
months
ofby
thethe
end
of the reporting
period by owners by the transferee under AASB 1004. Other 14,834
reciprocal
transfers
of assets
andend
liabilities
as contributions by owners under TI 955 are also recognised
More than
12 months
after the
of the designated
reporting period
145,323directly to equity.
128,168
160,157
141,110
4.1.3 Services received free of charge

Department of Finance - government leased accommodation

40,950

84,232

Services received free of charge: Services received free of charge or for nominal cost, are recognised as revenues at the fair value of
those services that can be reliably measured and which would have been purchased if they were not donated.
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3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
4.2
Car park user fees and fines

2018
2018
$
$

2017
2017
$
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Parking
fees
under the
ParkingasAgreement
(a)during the period the services are delivered.2,021,087
2,102,762
rendered
up received
to the reporting
dateCapella
and recorded
an expense
Other parking fees
137,274
167,499
Fines
and penalties
263,124
255,562
Current
(a)
2,421,485
2,525,823
164,890
150,798
Annual leave

(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
(a) In June 2011, the State entered into a project agreement with Capella Parking Pty Ltd (Capella) to build235,529
and operate a multi-deck
car
215,509
park on the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre. This agreement entitles Capella to retain all parking charges collected from users of the
multi-deck car park and all other car parks (known as “At-Grade Car Parks”) on the Medical Centre site.
Non-current
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long service
leave
Statutory
responsibility
for the At-Grade Car Parks remains with the Trust through the North Metropolitan Health Services as the Delegate
(see note 1 Basis of Preparation'). As part of the project arrangements, the Delegate entered into an 'At-Grade Car Parks Management
Total employee
325,047
291,908
Agreement'
for a benefits
period of provisions
26 years with Capella under which Capella is appointed to operate and manage these
car parks (see also
note
4.3 below). In this context, Capella collects the fees from the At-Grade Car Parks on behalf of the Delegate and deposits these moneys
into
the Delegateʼs
bank account
to comply
with
provisions
in the Queen
Elizabeth
II Medical
Centre
1966
. The Delegate
then
In estimating
the non-current
long service
leave
liabilities,
employees
are assumed
to leave
the Trust
eachAct
year
on account
of resignation
subsequently
Capella
equivalentwas
of the
parking
fees
collected
form ofrates
a carexhibited
park management
fee (see
3.3).
or retirement pays
at 7.5%.
Thisthe
assumption
based
on an
analysis
of in
thethe
turnover
by employees
overnote
a five
year period.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years or to age 65 if earlier.

4.3
Car park operator licence fees
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
2,266,321
2,253,227
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
In June 2011, the Trust's statutory delegate entered into an 'At-Grade Car Parks Management Agreement' for a period of 26 years with
Capella Parking Pty Limited. From 10 October 2012, Capella is responsible for the operations and management of at-grade car parking
(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
on the site (see also note 11 above). In consideration for the grant of the licence to access, use and occupy the at-grade car parks,
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Capella (car park operator) is obliged to make licence fee payments to the Trust (as beneficiary to the agreement).
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

125,315
39,575
164,890

111,590
39,208
150,798

The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110
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2018
2018
$
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
4.4
Other revenue

2017
2017
$
$

Provision is made
for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
(a)
2,659,826
Tenant
charges
rendered
up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.3,500,000
(b)
171,937
159,231
Services to external organisations
Current
Other
45,288
40,309
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
3,717,225
2,859,366
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
235,529
215,509
(a) Comprises of tiered cost recovery for services charged to tenants (2018: 100% cost recovery rate; 2017: 100%
cost recovery rate).

Non-current
(b)
Includes collection
of money for provision of Government fleet parking to WA Health agencies and services rendered for property
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long service leave
maintenance.
Total employee
benefits provisions
Revenue
recognition

325,047

291,908

In estimating
the non-current
long service
leave
employees are
assumed
to leave theThe
Trust
each year
on account
of resignation
Revenue
is recognised
and measured
at the
fair liabilities,
value of consideration
received
or receivable.
following
specific
recognition
criteria
or retirement
at 7.5%.
assumption
was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
must
also be met
beforeThis
revenue
is recognised:
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years or toofage
65 if earlier.
Provision
services

Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the customer.
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discountappropriations
rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
Service
the carrying
amount of the
service as
leave
provision.
Service
Appropriations
are long
recognised
revenues
at fair value in the period in which the Trust gains control of the appropriated funds.

The Trust gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to the 'Amounts
(a) Annualfor
leave
liabilities:
Classified
asheld
current
as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
receivable
services'
(holding
account)
at Treasury.
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Trust obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is
39,575
39,208
More
than
12
months
after
the
end
of
the
reporting
period
received.
164,890
150,798
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110
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For

5

2018
$

Key assets
3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Assets the Trust utilises for economic benefit or service potential

2017
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
This
section
information
the key
assets
the Trust
utilises
to gain
benefits
or provide service potential. The
rendered
upincludes
to the reporting
date regarding
and recorded
as an
expense
during
the period
theeconomic
services are
delivered.
section sets out both the key accounting policies and financial information about the performance of these assets:
Current
(a)
Annual leave
(b)
Long service leave

Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Non-current
(b)
Long service leave

Notes

2018
164,890
$
70,639

2017
150,798
$
64,711

5.1
5.1.1

235,529
11,432,856
555,785

215,509
11,265,862
547,479

89,518

76,399

2018
$
325,047

2017
Total employee benefits provisions
291,908$
5.1
Property, plant and equipment
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
Land
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
(a)
420,000over the following
452,000
Employees
leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly
five
At
fair value with
years or to age 65 if earlier.

Reconciliation
Other estimations
used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include 452,000
expected future salary
rates,
Carrying
amount at and
start assumptions
of period
452,000
discount rates,
employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and(32,000)
assumptions may impact on
Revaluation
increments/(decrements)
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Carrying amount at end of period
420,000
452,000

(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
Site
infrastructure
of the
reporting
period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
(b)
11,052,143
10,907,143
At fair value
Accumulated
depreciation
(1,098,346)
(545,357)
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period
9,953,797
10,361,786
39,575
39,208
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
164,890
150,798
Reconciliation
Carrying
amount
start ofleave
periodis calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in10,361,786
10,907,143
The provision
foratannual
relation to services provided
by
Transfers
from
works
in progress
145,000
employees
up to
the reporting
date.
(552,989)
(545,357)
Depreciation (a)
(b) Longamount
serviceatleave
liabilities as the Trust
does not
Carrying
end ofliabilities:
period Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current 9,953,797
10,361,786
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Plant and equipment
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
At cost
28,664
28,664
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Accumulated depreciation
(7,909)
(5,113)
20,755
23,551
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Reconciliation
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Carrying amount at start of period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
Additions
Transfers from/(to) other reporting entities
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of period

14,834
23,551
145,323
160,157
(2,796)
20,755

12,942
17,236
128,168
22,670
141,110
(14,233)
(2,122)
23,551
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3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
5.1
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2018
2018
$
$

2017
2017
$
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Works
in progress
rendered
up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
At cost
1,038,304
428,525
Current
(a)
Reconciliation
Annual leave
Carrying amount at start
of period
(b)
Long service leave
Additions
Transfers between asset classes
Carrying
amount at end of period
Non-current

(b)
Long service leave
Total property, plant and equipment

164,890
428,525
70,639
754,779
235,529
(145,000)
1,038,304

150,798
64,711428,525
215,509
428,525

89,518
11,432,856

76,399
11,265,862

Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
Total reconciliation of Property, plant and equipment
Carrying
amount
start of period
11,265,862
In estimating
the at
non-current
long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each
year on account of 11,376,379
resignation
Additions
754,779
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees
over a five year451,195
period.
Employees
with leave
to entities
which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over
the following
five
Transfers
from/(to)
otherbenefits
reporting
(14,233)
years or to age
65 if earlier.
Revaluation
increments/(decrements)
(32,000)
-

Depreciation
(555,785)
(547,479)
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
Carrying amount at end of period
11,432,856
11,265,862
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2017 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).
(a)
Theleave
valuations
wereClassified
performed
year is
ended
30 June 2018
recognised
at 30
2018.
In undertaking
the
(a) Annual
liabilities:
asduring
currentthe
as there
no unconditional
rightand
to defer
settlement
for June
at least
12 months
after the end
revaluation, fair value of land was determined on the basis of comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
restricted use land).
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Site infrastructure
was
as reporting
at 1 July period
2015 by Rider Levett Bucknall WA Pty Ltd (Quantity Surveyor).
was
(b)More than
39,575 The valuation
39,208
12 months after
therevalued
end of the
performed during the year ended 30 June 2016 and recognised at 30 June 2016. A revaluation164,890
of site works has not
been
150,798
undertaken in the 2016-17 and 2017-18 financial years, as no external events have occurred since the last date of valuation, such
as changes in market conditions, that would indicate that the fair value of site works recorded have materially changed. Fair
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
value of site infrastruture was determined on the basis of replacement cost.
employees up to the reporting date.

Site
Infrastructure
include roads,
footpaths,long
paved
areas,
at-grade
car parks,
boundaryas
walls,
boundary
fencing,
gates,
(b) Long
service
leave liabilities:
Unconditional
service
leave
provisions
are classified
current
liabilities
as theboundary
Trust does
not
covered
ways,
landscaping
and
improvements.
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Initial
recognition
Pre-conditional
and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure, costing $5,000 or more are measured initially at cost. Where an asset is
acquired
for noindicate
or nominal
cost, the
cost is valued
at its fairisvalue
at the
acquisition.
Assessments
that actual
settlement
of the liabilities
expected
to date
occurofas
follows: Items of property, plant and equipment and
infrastructure costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where
they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
14,834
12,942
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
Assets transferred as part of a machinery of government change are transferred at their fair value.
160,157
141,110
The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the leasehold improvement.
The initial cost for a non-financial physical asset under a finance lease is measured at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.
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5.1

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Subsequent measurement

2018
$

2017
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Subsequent
recognition
an recorded
asset, theas
revaluation
model
is used
for thethe
measurement
rendered up to
to initial
the reporting
dateofand
an expense
during
the period
services are of:
delivered.

•Current
land
• buildings; and
(a)
Annual leave
• infrastructure
(b)
Long service leave
Land is carried at fair value.

164,890
70,639

150,798
64,711

235,529

215,509

Non-current
Buildings
and infrastructure are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. All other
(b)
89,518 losses.
76,399
property,
plantleave
and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
Long service

Land
buildings
are independently
(Valuations and Property
Total and
employee
benefits
provisions valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority
325,047
291,908
Analytics) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the assetʼs fair value at the end of
the
reporting period.
In estimating
the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Fair
value forwith
infrastructure
assets
determined
reference
theassumed
cost of replacing
remainingleave
futureuniformly
economic
benefits
embodied
in
Employees
leave benefits
to is
which
they arebyfully
entitledtoare
to take the
all available
over
the following
five
the
asset,
years
or to i.e.
agethe
65 ifcurrent
earlier.replacement cost. Current replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable
replacement cost of a substitute asset of comparable utility and the gross project size specifications, adjusted for obsolescence.
Obsolescence
encompasses
physical used
deterioration,
functional
(technological)
obsolescence
and economic
Other estimations
and assumptions
in calculating
the Trust's
long service
leave provision
include(external)
expectedobsolescence.
future salary rates,
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying model:
amount of the long service leave provision.
Revaluation

(a)
Fairleave
Valueliabilities:
where market-based
evidence
(a) Annual
Classified as
current is
asavailable:
there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
The fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market values determined by reference to recent market
[orthe
other
When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions,
the accumulated
125,315
111,590
Withintransactions
12 months of
endbasis,
of the describe].
reporting period
depreciation
is eliminated
against
gross carrying
to the revalued amount.
39,208
More than
12 months
after the end
of thethe
reporting
period amount of the asset and the net amount restated39,575
164,890
150,798
(b)
Fair value in the absence of market-based evidence:
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
Buildings
and
infrastructure
employees
up to the
reporting
date. are specialised or where land is restricted: Fair value of land, buildings and infrastructure is
determined on the basis of existing use.

(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
use buildings
and settlement
infrastructure:
Fair
valueforisatdetermined
by reference
costreporting
of replacing
the remaining future
have anExisting
unconditional
right to defer
of the
liability
least 12 months
after the to
endthe
of the
period.
economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the current replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings and infrastructure is
determined
the currentlong
replacement
cost basis,
the gross
amount
is adjusted liabilities
in a manner
that is the
consistent
Pre-conditional
andonconditional
service leave
provisions
are carrying
classified
as non-current
because
Trust with
has the
an
revaluation
ofdefer
the carrying
amountofofthe
theliability
asset and
is adjusted
equal
difference between the
unconditional
right to
the settlement
until the
the accumulated
employee hasdepreciation
completed the
requisiteto
years
of the
service.
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Restricted use land: Fair value is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high
use
or market
value of comparable
unrestricted land (low restricted use land).
Withinrestricted
12 months
of land)
the end
of the reporting
period
14,834
12,942
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
Significant assumptions and judgements: The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating
made in
160,157fair value are 141,110
assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. Professional judgement
by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use
assets.
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2018
2018
$
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
5.1.1 Depreciation and amortisation expense

2017
2017
$
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Depreciation
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Site infrastructure
552,989
545,357
Plant
and equipment
2,796
2,122
Current
(a)
555,785
547,479
164,890
150,798
Annual leave

(b)
70,639
Long service leave
As at 30 June 2018 there were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment or infrastructure
235,529
All surplus assets at 30 June 2018 have either been classified as assets held for sale or have been written-off.
Non-current
(b)
Finite
useful lives
89,518
Long service
leave

64,711

215,509
76,399

All
Property,
plantbenefits
and equipment
having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated
useful lives in a manner
Total
employee
provisions
325,047
291,908
that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. The exceptions to this rule include assets held for sale, land and
investment properties.
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
or retirementisatgenerally
7.5%. This
assumption
was based
an analysis
of the
turnover
exhibited
by employees
overresidual
a five year
period.
Depreciation
calculated
on a straight
line on
basis,
at rates that
allocate
the rates
assetʼs
value, less
any estimated
value,
over
Employees
leave
to which they
are
fullyforentitled
are assumed
to takeforallcurrent
available
uniformly
over theinfollowing
its
estimatedwith
useful
life. benefits
Typical estimated
useful
lives
the different
asset classes
and leave
prior years
are included
the tablefive
years or to age 65 if earlier.
below:
Other estimations and assumptions
used in calculating the Trust's
longlife
service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
Asset
Useful
discount rates, employee retention
rates
and
expected
future
payments.
Changes
in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
Site infrastructure
50 years
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Plant and equipment
10 years
(a) Annual
leave
liabilities:
as current
there is no method
unconditional
right to defer
settlement
for at annual
least 12reporting
months after
the end
The
estimated
useful
lives, Classified
residual values
and as
depreciation
are reviewed
at the
end of each
period,
and
of the reporting
period.
Assessments
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
adjustments
should
be made
where appropriate.
125,315
111,590
39,575
39,208
164,890
150,798
Land and works of art, which are considered to have an indefinite life, are not depreciated. Depreciation is not
recognised in respect
of
Within 12improvements
months of theare
enddepreciated
of the reporting
Leasehold
over period
the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

these assets because their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period.
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
employees up
to the reporting
Significant
assumptions
and date.
judgements: The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in
assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. Professional judgement by the
(b) Long
servicewhere
leave the
liabilities:
long aservice
leave provisions
classified
as current
as the
Trust does not
valuer
is required
evidenceUnconditional
does not provide
clear distinction
betweenare
market
type assets
and liabilities
existing use
assets.
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Impairment
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional assets,
right to including
defer the items
settlement
of the
until the
completed
the requisite
service. that the asset may
Non-financial
of plant
andliability
equipment,
areemployee
tested forhas
impairment
whenever
thereyears
is an of
indication
be impaired. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than
Assessments
indicate the
that asset
actual is
settlement
of the
liabilitiesand
is expected
occur as
the
carrying amount,
considered
impaired
is writtento down
to follows:
the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is
recognised.
Where
an12
asset
measured
at cost
is written
down
to its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised14,834
through profit or loss.12,942
Within
months
of the end
of the
reporting
period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
Where a previously revalued asset is written down to its recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement through
160,157
141,110
other comprehensive income.
As the Trust is a not-for-profit entity, the recoverable amount of regularly revalued specialised assets is anticipated to be materially the
same as fair value.
If there is an indication that there has been a reversal in impairment, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount.
However this reversal should not increase the assetʼs carrying amount above what would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an assetʼs depreciation is materially understated, where the
replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify
that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the assetʼs future economic benefits and
to evaluate any impairment risk from declining replacement costs.

8
16

48

QEIIMC Trust Annual Report 2017/2018

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
Notes
to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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6

Other assets and liabilities

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions

2018
$

2017
$

2018
2017
Notes
$ leave for services $
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and long service
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Receivables
6.1
111,246
298,272
Amounts
6.2
9,435,159
8,887,160
Current receivable for services
(a)
Other
assets
6.3
3,388
3,388
164,890
150,798
Annual
leave
Payables
6.4
977,390
431,896
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
Other liabilities
6.5
400
200
235,529
215,509
Non-current
(b)
Long service leave

2018
89,518
$

2017
76,399
$

6.1
Receivables
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
Current
In estimating
the non-current
long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year
on account of resignation
Fines
and penalties
receivables
67,090
61,555
or retirement
at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees
over a five year257,037
period.
Other
receivables
57,183
Employeesfor
with
leave benefits
to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly
five
Allowance
impairment
of receivables
(29,436)over the following
(32,906)
yearsReceivables
or to age 65 if earlier.
GST
16,409
12,586
111,246
298,272
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discount
employee
retention
rates
and expected
future payments.
Changes
in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
The
Trustrates,
does not
hold any
collateral
or other
credit enhancements
as security
for receivables.
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less any allowances for uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The carrying
(a) Annual
leave
liabilities:
Classified
as current
thereas
is itno
right to
defer
for at least 12 months after the end
amount
of net
trade
receivables
is equivalent
to fairasvalue
is unconditional
due for settlement
within
30settlement
days.
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Accounting procedure for Goods and Services Tax
111,590
Within
months
of thereceivable
end of the from
reporting
period
Rights
to 12
collect
amounts
the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO) and responsibilities to make 125,315
payments for GST have
been
39,575
39,208
More than
12 months
after the
end of the
reporting
period
assigned
to the
'Department
of Health'.
This
accounting
procedure was a result of application of the grouping
provisions of “A New
Tax
164,890
150,798
System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999" whereby the Department of Health became the Nominated Group
Representative (NGR)
for
the GST Group. The entities in the GST group include the Department of Health, Mental Health Commission, North Metropolitan Health
The provision
for annual leave
calculated
at the present
valueand
of Adolescent
expected payments
to beSupport
made in
relation WA
to services
Service,
East Metropolitan
Trust,isSouth
Metropolitan
Trust, Child
Trust, Health
Services,
Countryprovided
Trust, QEby
II
employees
up toTrust,
the reporting
date.
Medical
Centre
and Health
and Disability Services Complaints Office.
(b) Long
serviceonleave
liabilities:
Unconditional
longby
service
leaveUpon
provisions
are classified
as current
as for
thethe
Trust
does
not
GST
receivables
accrued
expenses
are recognised
the Trust.
the receipt
of tax invoices,
GST liabilities
receivables
GST
group
have
an unconditional
right toofdefer
settlement of
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
are
recorded
in the accounts
the Department
ofthe
Health.
Pre-conditional
andof conditional
longforservice
leave ofprovisions
are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
Movement
the allowance
impairment
receivables
6.1.1
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Assessments
indicate
that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Balance
at start
of period
Impairment losses reversed during the period
Within at
12 end
months
of the end of the reporting period
Balance
of period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

32,906
38,734
(3,470)
(5,828)
14,834
12,942
29,436
32,906
145,323
128,168
160,157
141,110
The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible
are written-off against
the
allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Trust will
not be able to collect the debts.
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3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
6.2
Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)

2018
2018
$
$

2017
2017
$
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Non-current
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Amounts receivable for services
9,435,159
8,887,160
Current
Amounts receivable
for services represent the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted
in that it can only 150,798
be used
(a)
164,890
Annual leave
for asset replacement
or payment of leave liability.
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
235,529
The Trust receives funding on an accrual basis. The appropriations are paid partly in cash and partly as an asset
(holding account 215,509
receivable). The accrued amount receivable is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements
Non-current
and
asset replacement.
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long service leave

6.3
Other assets
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
Current
Prepayments
3,388
3,388
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year
on account of resignation
Other
- a five year period.or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over
3,388over the following3,388
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly
five
years or to age 65 if earlier.
Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or that part of
expenditure
made inand
oneassumptions
accounting period
covering
a term
extending
beyond
that period.
Other estimations
used in
calculating
the
Trust's long
service
leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying
amount of the long service leave provision.
6.4
Payables
Current
(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
Trade
636,611
285,444
of the creditors
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Accrued expenses
312,967
126,097
125,315
111,590
Within salaries
12 months of the end of the reporting period
Accrued
27,812
20,355
39,575
39,208
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
977,390
431,896
164,890
150,798
Payables are recognised when the Trust becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The
The provision
leave
at the present
value ofwithin
expected
payments to be made in relation to services provided by
carrying
amountforis annual
equivalent
to is
faircalculated
value, as settlement
is generally
30 days.
employees up to the reporting date.
Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Accrued salaries are settled within a
(b) Longofservice
leave period
liabilities:
long service
leave amount
provisions
are classified
astocurrent
liabilities
fortnight
the reporting
end. Unconditional
The Trust considers
the carrying
of accrued
salaries
be equivalent
to as
its the
fair Trust
value.does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
6.5
Other Liabilities
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Current
Refundable deposits
400
200
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Other
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

400
14,834
145,323
160,157

200
12,942
128,168
141,110
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7

2018
$

Financing

2017
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
This section sets out the material balances and disclosures associated with the financing and cashflows of the Trust.

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service
2018 leave for services
2017
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the servicesNotes
are delivered.
$
$
Current
7.1
Cash and cash equivalents
(a)
164,890
150,798
7.1.1
10,036,137
9,279,061
Reconciliation
Annual
leave of cash
(b) cost of services to net cash flows used in operating
70,639
64,711
7.1.2
999,130
(185,027)
Reconciliation
of net
Long
service leave
activities
235,529
215,509
7.1.3
99,114
107,851
Reconciliation of income from State Government to cash flows from State
Government
Non-current
(b)
7.2
Commitments
89,518
76,399
Long
service leave
7.2.1
9,317
31,677
Operating lease commitments
7.2.2
45,562,500
47,812,500
Operating
leasebenefits
rental receivables
Total
employee
provisions
325,047
291,908
7.2.3
2,904,823
3,965,852
Capital expenditure commitments
InExpenditure
estimating the
non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the
Trust each 837,672
year on account of resignation
7.2.4
252,375
commitments
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years or to age 65 if earlier.
2018
2017
$
$
Cash and cash
equivalents used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
7.1
Other
estimations
and assumptions
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
Reconciliation
of cash
7.1.1
the
carrying
amount of the
long service leave provision.
Cash and cash equivalents
10,021,137
9,271,061
(a)
Annualcash
leaveand
liabilities:
Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
Restricted
cash equivalents
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate
that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
(a)
15,000
8,000
Accrued salaries suspense account
10,036,137
9,279,061
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
39,575assets comprise39,208
More
12 months
after the end
of the
reporting
For
the than
purpose
of the statement
of cash
flows,
cash period
and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent)
cash
on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible164,890
to a known amount 150,798
of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
The accruedupsalaries
suspensedate.
account consists of amounts paid annually, from trust appropriations for salaries expense, into a Treasury
employees
to the reporting
suspense account to meet the additional cash outflow for employee salary payments in reporting periods with 27 pay days instead of the
normal 26. No interest is received on this account.
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
7.1.2 Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows used in operating activities

Pre-conditional
and(Statement
conditionalof long
service leave
provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 50,147
because the Trust
has an
Net cost of services
Comprehensive
Income)
(620,595)
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the
requisite years of service.
Notes
Non-cash items:
Assessments
that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Doubtful debtsindicate
expense
Reversal of impairment for receivables
Within 12 months
of the end expense
of the reporting
period
Depreciation
and amortisation
(note 5.1.1)
More than
12 months
the end of the reporting period
Services
received
free ofafter
charge
Increase/(decrease) in assets:
GST receivable
Other current receivables
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Decrease/(increase) in liabilities:
Payables
Current provisions
Non-current provisions
Income received in advance
Other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities (Statement of Cash Flows)

6.1.1
6.1.1
5.1.1
4.1.3

(3,470)
14,834
555,785
145,323
40,950
160,157

(5,828)
12,942
547,479
128,168
84,232
141,110

(3,823)
194,319
-

3,552
(166,971)
(3,388)

131,883
20,020
13,119
200
999,130

45,689
41,207
(2,877)
(107,292)
(235)
(185,027)
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3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
7.1.3 Reconciliation of income from State Government to cash flows from State Government

2018
2018
$
$

2017
2017
$
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Service appropriations as per Statement of Comprehensive Income
647,114
674,413
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Less non-cash items:
(548,000)
(566,562)
Current Accrual appropriations
(a)
Annual
leavefrom State Government as per Statement of Cash Flows
Cash
Flows
(b)
Long service leave
7.2
Commitments

The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant.
Non-current
(b)
Long service
leavelease commitments
Operating
7.2.1

164,890
99,114
70,639

150,798
107,851
64,711

235,529

215,509

89,518

76,399

Commitments
in benefits
relation to
non-cancellable leases contracted at the end of the reporting period but not325,047
recognised as liabilities
are
Total employee
provisions
291,908
payable as follows:
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
Within
1 year at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees
9,317
22,360
or retirement
over a five year period.
Employees
benefits
to which
they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over
the following
five
Later
than 1 with
year,leave
and not
later than
5 years
9,317
yearsoperating
or to age lease
65 if earlier.
Total
commitments
9,317
31,677
Operating
leases are
on a used
straight
line basis over
the lease
term
as this
represents
theinclude
patternexpected
of benefits
derived
from
the
Other estimations
andexpensed
assumptions
in calculating
the Trust's
long
service
leave
provision
future
salary
rates,
leased
properties.
discount
rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Operating lease commitments predominantly consist of contractual agreements for office accommodation and residential accommodation.
The
basis ofleave
whichliabilities:
contingentClassified
operatingas
leases
payments
determined
is theright
value
each
lease agreement
under
the contract
terms
(a) Annual
current
as thereare
is no
unconditional
to for
defer
settlement
for at least
12 months
after the
end
and
conditions
currentAssessments
values.
of the
reportingatperiod.
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
WithinOperating
12 monthslease
of therental
end ofreceivables
the reporting period
7.2.2
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

125,315
39,575
164,890

111,590
39,208
150,798

Within
1 year for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation
2,250,000
2,250,000
The provision
to services provided
by
employees
to the
Later
than 1up
year,
andreporting
not laterdate.
than 5 years
9,000,000
9,000,000
Later than 5 years
34,312,500
36,562,500
(b) Long
service
leave
liabilities:
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current45,562,500
liabilities as the Trust
does not
Total
operating
lease
rental
receivables
47,812,500
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the
Pre-conditional
leased
properties.and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

All operating lease rental receivables relate to the licence fees receivable from Capella Parking Pty Limited under the ʻAt-Grade Car Parks
AssessmentsAgreementʼ.
indicate that actual
settlement
the liabilities
expected
occur
as follows:
Management
See note
4.3 ʻCarofpark
operator is
licence
feesʼtofor
further
information. The Agreement requires that the licence
fee payments shall be increased by the most recently published Consumer Price Index (CPI) on the licence fee payment dates.
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
14,834
12,942
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
7.2.3 Capital expenditure commitments:
160,157
141,110
Capital expenditure commitments being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the financial statements are
payable as follows:
Within 1 year
7.2.4

2,904,823

3,965,852

Expenditure commitments:

Expenditure commitments (contracted by the Delegate) at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities, are payable as
follows:
Within 1 year

837,672

252,375
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8

2018
$

Risks and Contingencies
3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions

2017
$

Notes

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Financial
management
8.1
rendered risk
up to
the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are
delivered.
Contingent assets and liabilities
8.2
Contingent assets
8.2.1
Current
Contingent liabilities
8.2.2
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
Fair value measurements
8.3
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave

235,529
215,509
8.1
Financial instruments
Non-current
Financial
instruments held by the Trust are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables,
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long service
leave Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC)/Bank borrowings, finance leases, and Treasurerʼs
payables,
Western
advances. The Trust's
has
limited exposure to financial risks. The Trustʼs overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
(a)
Summary of risks and risk management
In estimating
the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
Credit
risk
or retirement
at 7.5%.
This assumption
was of
based
on an receivables
analysis of the
turnover
byobligations
employeesresulting
over a five
year period.
Credit
risk arises
when there
is the possibility
the Trustʼs
defaulting
onrates
their exhibited
contractual
in financial
loss
Employees
to
the Trust. with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years or to age 65 if earlier.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is the gross
carrying
amount of and
those
assets inclusive
allowance
impairment
as shown
the table include
at Noteexpected
8.1(c) ʻFinancial
instruments
Other estimations
assumptions
used of
in any
calculating
the for
Trust's
long service
leaveinprovision
future salary
rates,
disclosuresʼ
andemployee
Note 6.1 ʻReceivablesʼ.
discount
rates,
retention
rates
and
expected
future
payments.
Changes
in
these
estimations
and
assumptions
may
impact
on
Credit risk associated with the Trustʼs financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts receivable for services
the carrying
amount
of receivables
the long service
(holding
account).
For
otherleave
than provision.
Government, the Trust trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Trust has

policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition,
(a) Annualbalances
leave liabilities:
Classified
asongoing
current as
there
is the
no unconditional
to defer
settlement
at least
12 months
after
theofend
receivable
are monitored
on an
basis
with
result that theright
Trust's
exposure
to badfor
debts
is minimal.
At the
end
the
of the reporting
Assessments
indicate
that actual of
settlement
of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
reporting
period period.
there were
no significant
concentrations
credit risk.
Liquidity
Within risk
12 months of the end of the reporting period
Liquidity
risk 12
arises
whenafter
the the
agency
to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due.
More than
months
end is
of unable
the reporting
period

125,315
111,590
39,575
39,208
164,890
150,798
The Trust has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdown of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to
ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
employees
Market
risk up to the reporting date.
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the agencyʼs income or
(b) value
Long of
service
leave of
liabilities:
UnconditionalThe
long
service
provisions
are currency
classifiedand
as current
liabilities exposed
as the Trust
doesprice
not
the
its holdings
financial instruments.
Trust
doesleave
not trade
in foreign
is not materially
to other
have [for
an unconditional
right
to defer or
settlement
of the
liability
for at least
months
after the
of the
period.
risks
example, equity
securities
commodity
prices
changes].
The 12
Trustʼs
exposure
to end
market
riskreporting
for changes
in interest rates relate
primarily to the long-term debt obligations.
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
All
borrowingsright
are to
due
to the
and of
are
at fixed
rates withhas
varying
maturities.
Other than
unconditional
defer
theWATC
settlement
therepayable
liability until
the employee
completed
the requisite
yearsasofdetailed
service. in the interest rate
sensitivity analysis table at Note 8.1(e), the Trust is not exposed to interest rate risk because the majority of cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and it has no borrowings other than the Treasurerʼs advance (non-interest bearing), WATC
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
borrowings and finance leases (fixed interest rate).
12 months of
end of instruments
the reporting period
14,834
12,942
(b)WithinCategories
of the
financial
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end160,157
of the reporting period
are:
141,110

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
(a)
Loans and receivables
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Total Financial Liabilities

2018
$

2017
$

10,021,137
15,000
9,529,996
19,566,133

9,271,061
8,000
9,172,844
18,451,905

977,390
977,390

431,896
431,896

(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable).
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Financial
instruments
(continued)
Ageing
analysis
of financial
assets

19,566,133
9,271,061
8,000
9,271,061
285,686
8,000
8,887,160
285,686
8,887,160
18,451,907

19,566,133
9,271,061
8,000
9,271,061
191,085
8,000
8,887,160
191,085
8,887,160
18,357,806

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable)

18,451,907 18,357,806
(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable)

2017
Cash and cash equivalents
2017
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Amounts receivable for services
Receivables (a)
Amounts receivable for services
69,326

69,326
69,326
69,326
18,281

18,281
18,281
18,281

6,994

6,994
6,994
6,994

The Trust does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.
Past due but not impaired
Not past due
Past due but not impaired
Carrying amount
and not
3 months to
Not past due
impaired 1 - 3 months
1-5 years
1 year
Carrying amount
and not
3 months to
$
$
$
$
$
impaired 1 - 3 months
1-5 years
1 year
$
$
$
$
$
2018
Cash and cash equivalents
10,021,137 10,021,137
2018
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
15,000
15,000
Cash and cash equivalents
10,021,137 10,021,137
Receivables (a)
94,837
94,837
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
15,000
15,000
Amounts receivable for services
9,435,159
9,435,159
Receivables (a)
94,837
94,837
Amounts receivable for services
9,435,159
9,435,159
19,566,133 19,566,133

-

--

-

More than
5 years
More than
$
5 years
$

-

--

-

Impaired
Financial
Impaired
assets
Financial
$
assets
$

22

Ageing analysis of financial assets
(c)
Credit risk
The following table discloses the Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
Credit risk
period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is
The following table discloses the Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
based on information provided to senior management of the Trust.
period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is
based on information provided to senior management of the Trust.
The Trust does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.

8.1
(c)

For the
yearFinancial
ended 30
June 2018
8.1
instruments (continued)

For
the year
ended
30 June 2018
Notes
to the
Financial
Statements

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The
Queen
II Medical
Centre Trust
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to theElizabeth
Financial
Statements

QEIIMC Trust Annual Report 2017/2018

55

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable)

69,326

6,190,272

6,190,272 - - -

18,451,907 18,357,806
(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable)

-

-

10,021,137
15,000
94,837
9,435,159
19,566,133
69,326
- -

9,271,061
8,000
977,390
285,686
8,887,160
977,390

19,566,133

10,021,137
15,000
10,021,137
94,837
15,000
9,435,159
94,837
9,435,159
19,566,133
9,271,061
8,000
191,085
8,887,160
-

2017
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial
Liabilities
Restricted
cash and cash equivalents
Payables
Receivables (a)
Amounts receivable for services

-

18,281

977,390
18,281
977,390 -

13,375,861

6,994

977,390
6,994
977,390 -

19,565,633

3,830,865 - 10,021,137 15,000
15,000
94,837 94,837 9,435,159 9,435,159 -

-

977,390977,390-

10,115,174

10,021,137-94,837--

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Trust does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.
Interest rate exposure
Past due but not impaired
Weighted
NotFixed
past due
average
Variable
NonCarrying
amount interest
and not
3 interest
months to Nominal
More
effective
Carrying
interest
Upthan
to
impaired
1 - 3 months
1-5 years
5 years
1 year
interest rate
amount
rate
rate
bearing
Amount
3 months
$
$
$
$
$
$
%
$
$
$
$
$
$

2018
Cash
and cash equivalents
Financial
Assets
Restricted
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and
cash equivalents
Receivables
Restricted
cash and(a)cash equivalents
Amounts
receivable
services
Receivables
- non
interest for
bearing
(a)
Amounts receivable for services

2018

8.1

-

---

-

----

Impaired
Financial
3 months
to 1assets
year
$
$

-

-

9,450,159

15,000
9,435,159

More than
5 years
$

-

-

-

1-5 years
$

Maturity dates

8.1
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
(c)
Ageing analysis of financial assets
(d)
Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
Credit risk
The following
table discloses
theinterest
Trustʼs maximum
exposure
to credit
risk and
the ageing
analysis
of financial
assets.
The Trustʼs
maximum
credit risk
at the
end of interest
the reporting
The following
table details
the Trust's
rate exposure
and the
contractual
maturity
analysis
of financial
assets
and financial
liabilities.
Theexposure
maturity to
analysis
section
includes
and
period
the carrying
amountrate
of financial
assets
as analyses
shown below.
Thecarrying
table discloses
theofageing
of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is
principal
cashisflows.
The interest
exposure
section
only the
amounts
each item.
based on information provided to senior management of the Trust.

For the year ended 30 June 2018

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
Notes
Statements
Forto
thethe
yearFinancial
ended 30 June
2018
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8.1

Financial instruments (continued)

-

69,326
-

-

-

431,896
431,896 18,281
-

-

6,994
-

431,896 -

431,896

-

431,896
431,896-

-

-

--

-

-

-
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
18,451,907 18,357,806
69,326
18,281
6,994
A change in banking arrangement effective from 1 July 2011 in accordance with the State Government's direction has resulted in the loss of interest earning capacity for the Trust's bank account.
(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable)
Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable
approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

19,566,133 19,566,133
Financial Liabilities
2017
Payables
431,896
Cash and cash equivalents
9,271,061
9,271,061
431,896
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
8,000
8,000
Receivables (a)
285,686
191,085
(a) TheAmounts
amount receivable
of receivables
excludes the GST recoverable from ATO
(statutory receivable)
for services
8,887,160
8,887,160

Financial instruments (continued)
(c)
Ageing analysis of financial assets
(d) Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure (continued)
Credit risk
The following table discloses the Trustʼs maximum
exposure
to credit and
risk and
the ageing
analysis
of financial
assets.
Trustʼs
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
Interest
rate exposure
maturity
analysis
of financial
assets
and The
financial
liabilities
period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is
based on information provided to senior management of the Trust.Interest rate exposure
Maturity dates
Weighted
averageor other credit enhancementsFixed
Variable
The Trust does not hold any collateral as security
relating to the
financial assets itNonholds.
3 months
More than
effective
Carrying
interest
interest
interest
Nominal
Up to
interest rate
amount
rate
rate
bearing
3 months
to 1 year
1-5 years
5 years
Past
due but notAmount
impaired
Not past$due
Impaired
%
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
2017
Carrying amount
and not
3 months to
More than
Financial
impaired 1 - 3 months
1-5 years
5 years
assets
1 year
Financial Assets
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
Cash and cash equivalents
9,271,061
9,271,061
9,271,061
9,271,061
Restricted
8,000
8,000
8,000
8,000
2018cash and cash equivalents
Cash and
10,021,137 10,021,137
Receivables
(a) cash equivalents
285,684
- 285,684 285,684 260,40918,2816,994
Restricted
cashfor
and
cash equivalents
15,000
15,000
Amounts
receivable
services
8,887,160
- - 8,887,160 8,887,160 - -8,887,160
Receivables (a)
94,837
94,837
Amounts receivable for services
9,435,159
9,435,159
18,451,905
- - 18,451,905 - 18,451,905 9,531,47018,2816,994 8,895,160

8.1

For the year ended 30 June 2018

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
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Notes
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8.2

Contingent assets and liabilities

2018
$

2017
$

164,890
70,639

150,798
64,711

235,529

215,509

89,518

76,399

325,047

291,908

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are disclosed and, if quantifiable,
are measured at nominal value.
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.
Current
Contingent(a)assets
Annual leave
(b)
service
leave
At theLong
reporting
date,
the Trust is not aware of any contingent assets.

8.2.1

8.2.2

Contingent liabilities
Non-current
(b)
service
leave
At theLong
reporting
date,
the Trust is not aware of any contingent liabilities.
The following
contingent
liabilities
are excluded from the liabilities included in the financial statements
Total employee
benefits
provisions

Contaminated
sitesthe non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
In estimating
Underorthe
Contaminated
Sites
Act
2003 the was
Trustbased
is required
report of
known
and suspected
contaminated
sites to over
the Department
of
retirement
at 7.5%.
This
assumption
on an to
analysis
the turnover
rates exhibited
by employees
a five year period.
WaterEmployees
and Environmental
(DWER).
In accordance
with the
DWERtoclassifies
sitesleave
on the
basis of over
the risk
human five
with leaveRegulation
benefits to
which they
are fully entitled
areAct,
assumed
take all these
available
uniformly
thetofollowing
health,
the orenvironment
and environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated – remediation required or possibly
years
to age 65 if earlier.
contaminated – investigation required, the Trust may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.

Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
At thediscount
reportingrates,
date,employee
the Trust does
not have
contaminated
sitesChanges
reportedinunder
Act.
retention
rates any
andsuspected
expected future
payments.
thesethe
estimations
and assumptions may impact on
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
8.3
Fair value measurements
(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
of the
reporting
period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
(a) Fair
value
hierarchy

125,315
111,590
Within
12 months
of the
of the measurements
reporting periodby level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:
AASB 13
requires
disclosure
of end
fair value
39,575
39,208
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
164,890
150,798
1) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets (Level 1).
2) Input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset either directly or indirectly (Level 2); and
The3)provision
leave
calculated
atobservable
the presentmarket
value data
of expected
payments
to (Level
be made
Inputs forfor
theannual
asset that
areisnot
based on
(unobservable
input)
3). in relation to services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

The following table represents the Trustʼs assets measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2018.
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement
the end
Notesof the liability for at least
Level12
1 months after
Level
2 of the reporting
Level 3 period. Fair value at
Assets measured at fair value:
end of period
as non-current
liabilities because
the Trust has
2018 Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified
$
$
$
$ an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
5.1
Land
Assessments
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to
Vacant
land
- occur as follows: Residential
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Specialised
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
Site infrastructure
Specialised

5.1

14,834
420,000
145,323
160,157

12,942
420,000
128,168
141,110

-

-

9,953,797

9,953,797

-

-

10,373,797

10,373,797
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8.3

Fair value measurements (continued)

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
The following table represents the Trustʼs assets measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2017.

2018
$

2017
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Level
1 the services
Level
Fair value at
rendered up to the reporting date and recordedNotes
as an expense during the
period
are 2delivered. Level 3
Assets measured at fair value:
end of period
2017
$
$
$
$
Current
(a)
Annual leave
Land
(b)
Long service leave
Vacant land
Residential
Specialised
Non-current
(b)
Longinfrastructure
service leave
Site
Specialised
Total employee benefits provisions

5.1

5.1

-

-

-

-

164,890
70,639
235,529
452,000

150,798
64,711
215,509
452,000

89,518

76,399

10,361,786
10,361,786
325,047
291,908
10,813,786
10,813,786
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
or retirement
7.5%. This
assumption
was
based
on an
of the
turnover
rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
There
were noattransfers
between
Levels 1,
2 or
3 during
theanalysis
current and
previous
periods.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years
or to agetechniques
65 if earlier.used to derive Level 3 fair values
(b)
Valuation
Other
estimations
assumptions
used of
in land
calculating
theWestern
Trust's Australian
long service
leave
provisionAuthority
include (Landgate
expected Valuation
future salary
rates,
The
Trust
obtained and
independent
valuations
from the
Land
Information
Services)
discount
rates,
employee
expected
futurevaluations
payments.of Changes
in these were
estimations
and in
assumptions
impactyear
on
in
the current
and
previousretention
financial rates
years.and
The
independent
site infrastructure
performed
the previousmay
financial
theRider
carrying
amount
of the
long
leave provision.
by
Levett
Buchnall
WA
Ptyservice
Ltd (Quantity
Surveyor). The valuation techniques applied to the measurement of fair values are the cost
approach.
(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
of theApproach
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Cost
125,315
Within 12ofmonths
of the end
of the
reporting
period
Properties
a specialised
nature
that
are rarely
sold in an active market or are held to deliver public services
are referred to 111,590
as non39,208
More or
than
12 months
afterassets.
the endThese
of the properties
reporting period
market
current
use type
do not normally have a feasible alternative use due to 39,575
restrictions or limitations
on
their use and disposal. The existing use is their highest and best use.
164,890
150,798
Thecurrent
provision
annual
leave
calculated
at the firstly
present
of expected
paymentscost
to be
relationland,
to services
by
For
usefor
land
assets,
fair is
value
is measured
by value
establishing
the opportunity
of made
public in
purpose
which isprovided
termed the
employees up
to the reporting
hypothetical
alternate
land use date.
value. This approach assumes unencumbered land use based upon potential highest and best alternative
use as represented by surrounding land uses and market analysis.
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
havevalue
an unconditional
defer settlement
ofassumption
the liability for
least
12ismonths
after the
of themarketable
reporting period.
Fair
of the land isright
thentodetermined
on the
thatatthe
site
rehabilitated
to end
a vacant
condition. This requires
costs associated with rehabilitation to be deducted from the hypothetical alternate land use value of the land. Costs may include building
demolition,
clearing,
approvals
and timeleave
allowances
associated
with realising
that potential.liabilities because the Trust has an
Pre-conditional
andplanning
conditional
long service
provisions
are classified
as non-current
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
In some instances the legal, physical, economic and socio political restrictions on a land results in a minimal or negative current use land
Assessments
indicate the
thatland
actual
settlement
is the
expected
to occur
as follows:amount or the amount determined on the basis
value.
In this situation
value
adoptedofisthe
theliabilities
higher of
calculated
rehabilitation
of comparison to market corroborated evidence of land with low level utility. Land of low level utility is considered to be grazing land on the
urban
fringe
of the metropolitan
with no economic
farming potential or foreseeable development or redevelopment
potential12,942
at the
Within
12 months
of the end of area
the reporting
period
14,834
measurement
date.
More than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
160,157
141,110
The Trustʼs site infrastructure are valued under the cost approach. This approach uses the replacement cost method which estimates the
current cost of reproduction or replacement of the site infrastructure, on its current site, less deduction for physical deterioration and
relevant forms of obsolescence. replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less, where applicable, accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset.
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8.3

Fair value measurements (continued)

2018
$

2017
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Although the buildings at the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre site are not the Trustʼs assets, the valuation of site infrastructure is
undertaken
the valuation
ofemployees
the buildings.
The techniques
involved
in the
determination
of the
current
replacement
costs
Provision is together
made forwith
benefits
accruing to
in respect
of wages and
salaries,
annual
leave and long
service
leave
for services
include:
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.

Review and updating of the ʻas-constructedʼ drawing documentation;
a)
Current
Categorisation
of the drawings using the Building Utilisation Categories (BUCʼs) which designate164,890
the functional areas 150,798
typically
b)
(a)
Annual leave
provided by(b) the clinical buildings at the site. Each BUC has different cost rates which are calculated from the historical
70,639
64,711
Long service
leave costs of similar clinical buildings and are adjusted for the year-to-year change in building
construction
costs using building cost
235,529
215,509
index. The building cost index is published by the Department of Financeʼs Building Management and
Works.
Measurement of the general floor areas;
c)
Non-current
Application of the BUC cost rates per square meter of general floor areas to derive the current replacement costs of buildings on
d)
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long service
leave
site; and
Calculations of the current replacement costs of site infrastructure in accordance with the types of improvements and area
e)
measurement
andprovisions
in proportion to the current replacement costs of buildings on the site.
Total employee
benefits
325,047
291,908

The
maximumthe
effective
age used
in the valuation
of site employees
infrastructure
20 years.toThe
effective
age
of the
site
is initially
In estimating
non-current
long service
leave liabilities,
areisassumed
leave
the Trust
each
year
oninfrastructure
account of resignation
calculated
from
commissioning
date,was
andbased
is reviewed
after theofsite
undergone
substantial
renewal,
upgrade
or
or retirement
at the
7.5%.
This assumption
on an analysis
theinfrastructure
turnover rateshave
exhibited
by employees
over
a five year
period.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
expansion.
years or to age 65 if earlier.
The straight line method of depreciation is applied to derive the replacement cost, assuming a uniform pattern of consumption over the
initial
years of asset
(up to 75%used
of current
replacement
costs). The
infrastructure
are assumed
have a residual
25%
Other37
estimations
and life
assumptions
in calculating
the Trust's
longsite
service
leave provision
includeto expected
future value
salaryofrates,
of
their
current
replacement
costs.
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on

the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
(c)

(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
The
following
table
represents
the changes
in that
levelactual
3 items
for the period
30 is
June
2018: to occur as follows:
of the
reporting
period.
Assessments
indicate
settlement
of theended
liabilities
expected
Site
infrastructure
Land
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
2018
39,575$
39,208$
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
Fair value at start of period
452,000
10,361,786
164,890
150,798
Additions and transfers from work in progress
145,000
Revaluation
increments/(decrements)
(32,000)
The provision
for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation
to services provided byDepreciation
(552,989)
employees up to the reporting date.
Fair value at end of period
420,000
9,953,797
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
The
table represents
the changes
in level
3 items
30 after
Junethe
2017:
havefollowing
an unconditional
right to defer
settlement
of the
liabilityfor
forthe
at period
least 12ended
months
end of the reporting period.
Site
Land the infrastructure
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because
Trust has an
2017
$
$
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Fair value at start of period
452,000
10,907,143
Depreciation
(545,357)
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Fair value at end of period
10,361,786
452,000

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
14,834
12,942
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
The Landgate Valuation Service determines the fair values of the Trustʼs land, and prior to 1 July 2014, also160,157
determined the fair values
of
141,110
site infrastructure. A quantity surveyor was engaged by the Department of Health to provide an update of the current replacement costs as
at 1 July 2015 for site infrastructure.
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9

2018
$

Other disclosures
3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions

2017
$

Notes

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
Events
occurring
after
the enddate
of the
9.1delivered.
rendered
up to the
reporting
andreporting
recordedperiod
as an expense during the period the services are
Future impact of Australian standards issued not yet operative
9.2
Key
management personnel
9.3
Current
Related party transactions
9.4
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
Related bodies
9.5
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
Affiliated bodies
9.6
235,529
215,509
Remuneration of auditors
9.7
Equity
9.8
Non-current
Asset revaluation reserve
9.8.1
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long
service leave
Accumulated
surplus (deficit)
9.8.2

Supplementary financial information
9.9
Reporting
entity'sbenefits
accountsprovisions
9.10
Total employee
325,047
291,908
Explanatory statement
9.11
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Employees
withoccurring
leave benefits
they
fully entitled
are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
9.1
Events
after to
thewhich
end of
theare
reporting
period
years or to age 65 if earlier.
There were no events occurring after the reporting period which had significant financial effects on these financial statements.
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discountFuture
rates, impact
employee
retention rates
and expected
future not
payments.
Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
9.2
of Australian
Accounting
Standards
yet operative
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
The Trust cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian
Accounting
Standards
and Other
Pronouncements
by is
annoexemption
fromright
TI 1101.
Where
applicable,
the Trust
plans after
to apply
the
(a) Annual leave
liabilities:
Classified
as current as or
there
unconditional
to defer
settlement
for at least
12 months
the end
following
Australian
Accounting
Standards
from
their
application
date.
of the reporting
period.
Assessments
indicate
that
actual
settlement
of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Title
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

Operative
for
111,590
reporting periods
39,208
beginning
150,798
on/after
Financial
Instruments
AASB
9
1 Jan
2018 by
The provision
for annual leave
is calculated
at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services
provided
employees up to the reporting date.
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement
, introducing
numberleave
of changes
to accounting
treatments.
(b) Long service leave liabilities:
Unconditional
longaservice
provisions
are classified
as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after being
amended
AASB 2012-6,
AASB 2013-9
AASB 2014-1
Amendments
to Australian
Pre-conditional and conditional
longbyservice
leave provisions
are and
classified
as non-current
liabilities
because the Trust has an
Accounting
Standards.
The until
Trustthe
hasemployee
not yet determined
the application
oryears
the potential
unconditional right to defer the
settlement
of the liability
has completed
the requisite
of service.
impact of the Standard.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
AASB 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
1 Jan 2019
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
14,834
12,942
More than 12 months afterThis
the end
of the reporting
period
128,168
Standard
establishes
the principles that the Trust shall apply to report145,323
useful
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing
and
160,157
141,110
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The
mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2019 after being
amended by AASB 2016-7.
125,315
39,575
164,890

The Trustʼs income is principally derived from car park fees, operator licences and
tenant charges. This revenue is recognised when the goods and services are provided
to the customers. Other sources of revenue for the Trust are insignificant and the
impact of this standard on the other revenue is immaterial. The Trust receives a small
appropriation from the government and this is not impacted by the standard.
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9.2

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative (continued)

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Title

2018
$

2017
$

Operative for
reporting periods
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
beginning
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
on/after
Leases
AASB 16
1 Jan 2019
Current
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
Non-current
(b)
Long service leave

the underlying asset is of low value. The Trust has not yet determined the application
or
235,529
the potential impact of the Standard.

215,509

Whilst the impact of AASB 16 has not yet been quantified, the entity currently
has
89,518
76,399
operating lease commitments for $9,317. The worth of non-cancellable operating leases
which the Trust anticipates most of this amount will be brought onto the statement of
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
financial position, excepting amounts pertinent to short-term or low value leases.
Interest and amortisation expenses will increase and rental expense will decrease.
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
AASB
1 Jan 2019
years 1058
or to age 65 if earlier. Income for Not-for-Profit-Entities
This Standard
and simplifies
the income
recognition
that apply
to future salary rates,
Other estimations and assumptions
usedclarifies
in calculating
the Trust's
long service
leave requirements
provision include
expected
not-for-profit
entities, future
more payments.
closely reflecting
the ineconomic
reality of and
NFPassumptions
entity
discount rates, employee retention
rates (NFP)
and expected
Changes
these estimations
may impact on
transactions
that provision.
are not contracts with customers. Timing of income recognition is
the carrying amount of the long
service leave
dependent on whether such a transaction gives rise to a liability, a performance
or service),
or atocontribution
by owners,
related
(a) Annual leave liabilities:obligation
Classified(aaspromise
current to
astransfer
there is anogood
unconditional
right
defer settlement
for at least
12 months after the end
to an asset
(such that
as cash
orsettlement
another asset)
Trust. The
Trustas
has
not yet
of the reporting period. Assessments
indicate
actual
of thereceived
liabilitiesby
is a
expected
to occur
follows:
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
125,315
111,590
1 Jan 2019
39,575
39,208
164,890
150,798
This Standard addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement (a type
of public
private partnership)
by a
grantor
that is a payments
public sector
agency
The provision for annual leave
is calculated
at the present
value
of expected
to be
madebyinprescribing
relation to services provided by
thedate.
accounting for the arrangement from the grantorʼs perspective. Timing and
employees up to the reporting
measurement for the recognition of a specific asset class occurs on commencement of
the arrangement
and the
for associated
is determined
whetheras the Trust does not
(b) Long service leave liabilities:
Unconditional
longaccounting
service leave
provisions liabilities
are classified
as currentbyliabilities
the
grantee
is
paid
by
the
grantor
or
users
of
the
public
service
provided.
The
Trust
has
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
not identified the impact of the standard.

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Arrangements:
Grantors
AASB
More1059
than 12 months afterService
the endConcession
of the reporting
period

Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
Amendments
to the
Australian
Accounting
Standards
arising from
AASB 9years
(December
AASB
2010-7 right to defer the
1 Jan 2018
unconditional
settlement of
liability until
the employee
has completed
the requisite
of service.
2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136,
137, 139,
1023 &of1038
and Int 2,is5,expected
10, 12, 19
127]as follows:
Assessments indicate that actual
settlement
the liabilities
to &
occur

Thisof the
Standard
makes
Within 12 months of the end
reporting
periodconsequential amendments to other Australian Accounting
14,834
as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. 145,323
More than 12 months afterStandards
the end ofand
the Interpretations
reporting period
160,157
The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6
and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018. The Trust has not yet determined the application
or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

12,942
128,168
141,110

1 Jan 2018

Part E of this standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments
to other Standards. It has not yet been assessed by the Trust to determine the
application or potential impact of the Standard.

8
29

QEIIMC Trust Annual Report 2017/2018

61

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements
Notes
to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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9.2

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative (continued)

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Title

2018
$

2017
$

Operative for
reporting
periods
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
beginning
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
on/after
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15
AASB
2014-5
1 Jan 2018
Current
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASB 15. The
235,529
215,509
mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2015-8 to 1
January 2018. The Trust has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
Non-current
of the Standard.
(b)
89,518
76,399
Long service leave
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December
AASB 2014-7
2014)
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047

1 Jan 2018
291,908

This
gives liabilities,
effect to the
consequential
amendments
Australian
Accounting
In estimating the non-current
longStandard
service leave
employees
are assumed
to leavetothe
Trust each
year on account of resignation
(including
Interpretations)
arising
the issuance
of AASB
9 (December
or retirement at 7.5%. ThisStandards
assumption
was based
on an analysis
of thefrom
turnover
rates exhibited
by employees
over a five year period.
2014).
The Trust
determined
the application
or available
the potential
impact
of theover the following five
Employees with leave benefits
to which
they has
are not
fullyyet
entitled
are assumed
to take all
leave
uniformly
years or to age 65 if earlier. Standard.
AASB
Jan 2018
Amendments
Australian
Accounting
Standards
– Effective
of AASB
15 expected future1 salary
Other 2015-8
estimations and assumptions
usedtoin
calculating
the Trust's
long service
leaveDate
provision
include
rates,
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying amount of the long
leave
provision.
Thisservice
Standard
amends
the mandatory application date of AASB 15 to 1 January 2018
(instead of 1 January 2017). It also defers the consequential amendments that were
set
in AASB
2014-5.
Trust has right
not yet
determined
the application
or months after the end
(a) Annual leave liabilities:originally
Classified
asout
current
as there
is noThe
unconditional
to defer
settlement
for at least 12
the potential
impact
of actual
AASB settlement
15.
of the reporting period. Assessments
indicate
that
of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within
12 months of the end
of the reporting
period Accounting Standards – Clarifications to AASB 15 125,315
Amendments
to Australian
AASB
2016-3
1 Jan 111,590
2018
39,575
39,208
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations, principal versus164,890
agent
150,798
considerations, timing of recognising revenue from granting a licence, and, provides
further
transitionalat provisions
AASB
15. The payments
Trust has tonot
determined
The provision for annual leave
is calculated
the presenttovalue
of expected
be yet
made
in relationthe
to services provided by
application
or the potential impact.
employees up to the reporting
date.

Amendments
to Australian
Accounting
Deferral
of AASB
15 forliabilities
Not-for- as the Trust
AASB
2016-7
1 Jandoes
2018not
(b) Long
service leave liabilities:
Unconditional
long service
leaveStandards
provisions- are
classified
as current
Profit
Entities
have an unconditional right to
defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Pre-conditional and conditional
long service
provisions entities,
are classified
as non-current
liabilities
because the Trust has an
This Standard
defers,leave
for not-for-profit
the mandatory
application
date of AASB
unconditional right to defer the
settlement
of2019,
the liability
until
the employeeamendments
has completed
requisite
years
service.
15 to
1 January
and the
consequential
thatthe
were
originally
setofout
in
AASB 2014-5. There is no financial impact arising from this standard.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
AASB 2016-8
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation
1 Jan 2019
Within 12 months of the end
of the reporting
period Entities
14,834
12,942
Guidance
for Not-for-Profit
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
145,323
128,168
160,157
141,110
This Standard inserts Australian requirements and authoritative implementation
guidance for not-for-profit entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15. This guidance assists notfor-profit entities in applying those Standards to particular transactions and other events.
There is no financial impact.
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3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
9.3
Key Management Personnel

2018
2018
$
$

2017
2017
$
$

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
The
Trust up
hastodetermined
that
keyand
management
include
Ministers
andthe
board
members
of the Trust. However, the Trust is not
rendered
the reporting
date
recorded aspersonnel
an expense
during
the period
services
are delivered.
obligated to compensate Ministers and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers' compensation may be found in the Annual Report on
State
Finances.
Current
(a)
Annual leave
(b)
Compensation
of members
of the accountable authority
Long service leave

Non-current
(b)
Long service leave

$0 – $10,000
$50,001 – $60,000
(a)

Short-term employee benefits
Total employee benefits provisions
(b)
Post-employment benefits

164,890
70,639

150,798
64,711

235,529
4
1
5
89,518

215,509
4
1
5
76,399

54,223
325,047
4,753

52,979
291,908
4,884

Total
compensation
of members
of the accountable
authority
58,976
57,863
In estimating
the non-current
long service
leave liabilities,
employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year
on account of resignation
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Employees
benefits
to which
they salary,
are fully
entitled
are benefits,
assumeddistrict
to takeand
all travel
available
leave uniformly
following
five
(a)
The shortwith
termleave
employee
benefits
includes
motor
vehicle
allowances
incurred over
by thethe
Trust
in respect
years
or to
age 65 if earlier.
of
senior
officers.
(b)
Theestimations
post employment
benefits represents
employerthe
superannuation
Other
and assumptions
used inthe
calculating
Trust's long contributions.
service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying
amount
oftransactions
the long service leave provision.
9.4
Related
party
The
Trust is leave
a statutory
authority
established
underas
thethere
Queen
Elizabeth
II Medical
Act
1966 . for at least 12 months after the end
(a) Annual
liabilities:
Classified
as current
is no
unconditional
rightCentre
to defer
settlement
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Related parties of the Trust include:
•Within
all Ministers
and their
members,period
and their controlled or jointly controlled entities;
125,315
111,590
12 months
of theclose
end family
of the reporting
•More
all board
and
senior
officers
and
their close
family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled
entities;
39,575
39,208
thanmembers
12 months
after
the end
of the
reporting
period
• other departments and statutory authorities, including their related bodies, that are included in the whole of
government consolidated
164,890
150,798
financial statements;
• associated
joint ventures,
are included
the whole
of government
statements;
The
provision and
for annual
leave isthat
calculated
at theinpresent
value
of expectedconsolidated
payments tofinancial
be made
in relationand
to services provided by
• the Government
Superannuation Board (GESB).
employees
up to theEmployees
reporting date.
Significant
transactions
with government
relatedlong
entities
(b) Long service
leave liabilities:
Unconditional
service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Significant transactions include:
• Service appropriation
(note 4.1.1);
Pre-conditional
and conditional
long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
• Assets transferred
to North
Service
4.1.2); andhas completed the requisite years of service.
unconditional
right to defer
theMetropolitan
settlement ofHealth
the liability
until(note
the employee
• Services received free of charge from the Health Support Services (note 4.1.3)
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Significant transactions with other related parties
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
14,834
12,942
Superannuation
payments
to GESB
3.1)
More than 12 months
after
the end(note
of the
reporting period
145,323
128,168
160,157
141,110
Material transactions with related parties
The Trust had no material related party transactions with key management personnel and their related parties. Transactions with related
parties that are considered Ordinary Citizen Transactions are not disclosed as they have immaterial implications to the financial position
and performance of the Trust
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For year
the year
ended
30 June
For the
ended
30 June
20182018

20182018
$ $

9.5 3.1 Related
bodiesbenefits provisions
(b) Employee

20172017
$ $

A related
bodyisismade
a body
receives
more
than half itsinfunding
resources
from theannual
Trust and
is and
subject
operational
control
by
Provision
forwhich
benefits
accruing
to employees
respect and
of wages
and salaries,
leave
longtoservice
leave for
services
the Trust.
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
The Trust had no related bodies during the financial year.
Current
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
9.6
Affiliated bodies
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long service leave
An affiliated body is a body which receives more than half its funding and resources from the Trust but is not subject
to operational control
235,529
215,509
by the Trust.
Non-current
(b)
The Trust
no affiliated
Long had
service
leave bodies during the financial year.

9.7

Remuneration of auditor
Total employee benefits provisions

89,518

76,399

325,047

291,908

Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
or retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Auditing
the accounts,
financial
statements
andthey
keyare
performance
indicators
17,600 five
Employees
with leave
benefits
to which
fully entitled
are assumed to take all available leave 17,600
uniformly over the following
years or to age 65 if earlier.
9.8
Equity
Other estimations and assumptions
used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
(a)
9.8.1discount
Assetrates,
revaluation
reserve
employee
retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Balance at start of period
33,058,508
33,058,508
(b)

(a) Annualincrements/(decrements)
leave liabilities: Classified: as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
Net revaluation
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur(32,000)
as follows:
Land
Balance at end of period
33,026,508
33,058,508
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
39,575
39,208
than
12 months
after the
end of
reporting
periodand decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets.
(a) TheMore
asset
revaluation
reserve
is used
to the
record
increments
164,890
150,798
(b) Any increment is credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that any increment reverses a revaluation
The provision
forrecognised
annual leave
is calculated
decrement
previously
as an
expense. at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
9.8.2 Accumulated surplus / (deficit)
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
haveatan
unconditional
reporting period. (4,172,587)
Balance
start
of period right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
(4,048,770)
Result for the period
738,211
123,817
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
Balance at end of period
(3,310,559)
(4,048,770)
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

9.9 Assessments
Supplementary
financial
information
indicate
that actual
settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
9.9.1 Within
Not for
12profit
months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
A number of not-for-profit organisations lease spaces from the Trust on a peppercorn rental basis.

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110

Based on indicative market rental rates from the Landgate Valuation Services as at June 2018, the total net rental values of the not-forprofit leases for the financial year is $1,830,000 (2017: $1,910,000).
Area (sqm)
Tenant
Cancer Foundation – Crawford Lodge (land only)
Lions Eye Institute (land only)
The Niche – Cystic Fibrosis WA (land only)
WA Institute for Medical Research (land only)
Ronald McDonald House

6,300
2,600
6,200
2,486
1,527
19,113

Net Rent
per annum
$
265,000
415,000
650,000
400,000
100,000
1,830,000

32
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Reporting Entity's Accounts
(c)
Ageing analysis of financial assets

Financial instruments (continued)

9,271,061
9,271,061
8,000
8,000
647,114
655,413
285,686
- 191,085
(14,233)
8,887,160
8,887,160
647,114
641,180
18,451,907 18,357,806

19,566,133 19,566,133
1,189,159
1,398,388

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD

1,804,273

2,039,568

SUPPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD
1,836,273
2,039,568
(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation reserve
(32,000)
-

Total income from State Government

NET INCOME / (COST) OF SERVICES
2017
Cash
andSTATE
cash equivalents
INCOME
FROM
GOVERNMENT
Restricted
cash and cash equivalents
Service
appropriations
Receivables
(a)
Assets
transferred
Amounts
receivable
services
Services
received
free for
of charge

(2,018,983)

-

(1,915,751)

-

(1,098,062)

(1,915,751)

(1,098,062)

- 19,000
69,326
-18,281
- 6,994
- 40,950
- 84,232
40,950
103,232
69,326
18,281
6,994

(1,139,012)

706,211

(32,000)

738,211

647,114
40,950
688,064

50,147

-

-

-

123,817

-

123,817

674,413
(14,233)
84,232
744,412

(620,595)

-

-

-

2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
$
$
$
$
$
$
Credit risk
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Trust
Trust
Delegate
Delegate
Total
Total
The following table discloses the Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is
COST OF SERVICES
based on information provided to senior management of the Trust.
Expenses
Employee benefit expense
2,202,449
1,957,736
2,202,449
1,957,736
The Trust
does
not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements
to the financial assets it-holds.
Board
member
remuneration
58,976 relating57,863
58,976
57,863
Depreciation expense
555,785
547,479
555,785
547,479
Past due but
not impaired 1,594,556
Repairs, maintenance and consumable equipment
1,594,556
1,601,598
1,601,598
Not -past due
Impaired
Management fees
2,021,087
2,102,762
2,021,087
2,102,762
Carrying
amount
and
not
3
months
to
More
than
Financial
Other expenses
462,401
249,497
1,459,630
1,742,076
1,922,031
1,991,573
1 - 3 months
1-5 years 8,354,884
5 years8,259,011
assets
Total cost of services
1,077,162impaired
854,839
7,277,722 1 year
7,404,172
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
INCOME
Revenue
2018
Cash
and
cash
10,021,137 10,021,137
-2,421,485
- 2,525,823
Car
park
user
feesequivalents
and fines
2,525,823
2,421,485
Restricted
cash and
cash
equivalents
15,000
- 2,253,227
Car
park operator
licence
fees
2,266,321 15,000
2,253,227
2,266,321
Receivables
94,837
- 2,859,366
Other
revenue (a)
- 94,837
3,717,225
2,859,366
3,717,225
Amounts
receivable
for services
9,435,159
-6,138,710
- 7,638,416
Total income
other
than income
from State Government
2,266,3219,435,159
2,253,227
5,385,189
8,405,031

9.10

8.1

For the year ended 30 June 2018
For the year ended 30 June 2018

The Queen
ElizabethIIIIMedical
MedicalCentre
CentreTrust
Trust
Queen Elizabeth
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(c)
Ageing
analysis
of financial
assets
Reporting
Entity's
Accounts
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

19,566,133

523,7209,271,061
114,609
9,271,061
8,000
8,000
- 191,085
285,686
8,887,160
8,887,160
523,720
114,609
18,451,907 18,357,806

19,566,133

29,715,949

33,026,508
(3,310,559)

EQUITY
Reserves
Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

TOTAL EQUITY
(a) Elimination of balance between the Trust and the Delegate.

29,715,949

523,720

NET ASSETS

Total Liabilities

29,009,738

33,058,508
(4,048,770)

29,009,738

114,609

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
- receivable)(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory
Total Non-Current Liabilities
-

LIABILITIES
Current2017
Liabilities
Payables
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts
duecash
to theand
Trust
Restricted
cash equivalents
Provisions
Receivables (a)
Other
current
liabilities for services
Amounts
receivable
Total Current Liabilities

-

-

-

-

1,993,191

89,518
89,518

-

-

-

1,848,294

76,399
76,399

- 453,670
- 317,287
1,214,074
1,238,899
69,326235,529 18,281215,509
400
200
1,903,673
1,771,895
69,326
18,281

-

-

-

-

(1,214,074)

-

- (1,214,074)
6,994
(1,214,074)
6,994

-

-

-

-

(1,238,899)

-

(1,238,899)
(1,238,899)
-

-

-

-

-

Current Assets
The assets
Trust does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements
to the financial1,844,540
assets it holds.
Cash
8,176,597 relating
7,751,443
1,519,618
Receivables
111,246
298,271
Past- due but not impaired
Amounts due from the Delegate
1,214,074
1,238,899
(1,214,074)
(1,238,899)
Other current assets
3,388
3,388
Not- past due
Impaired
Total Current Assets
9,390,671 and8,990,342
1,959,174
(1,214,074)
(1,238,899)
Carrying amount
not
3 months 1,821,277
to
More than
Financial
impaired 1 - 3 months
1-5 years
5 years
assets
1 year
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
15,000
8,000
Amounts
9,416,142
8,868,143
19,017
19,017
2018 receivable for services
Property,
plant
andequivalents
equipment
11,432,856
11,265,862
Cash and
cash
10,021,137
10,021,137
Total Non-Current
Assets
20,848,998 15,000
20,134,005
Restricted cash
and cash equivalents
15,000
- 34,017
- 27,017
Receivables (a)
94,837
94,837
Amounts receivable for services
9,435,159
- (1,214,074)
Total Assets
30,239,6699,435,159
29,124,347
1,993,191
1,848,294
(1,238,899)

29,733,742

31,018,786

29,715,949

33,026,508
(3,310,559)

29,715,949

1,302,837

89,518
89,518

29,009,738

33,058,508
(4,048,770)

29,009,738

724,004

76,399
76,399

431,896
215,509
200
647,605

8,000
8,887,160
11,265,862
20,161,022

15,000
9,435,159
11,432,856
20,883,015

977,390
235,529
400
1,213,319

9,271,061
298,271
3,388
9,572,720

10,021,137
111,246
3,388
10,135,771

2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
Credit risk
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
(a)
(a)
Theof
following
table
discloses the Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk
and the ageing
analysis of financial
The Trustʼs maximum
to credit
risk at the end
the reporting
Statement
Financial
Position
Trust
Trust
Delegate assets.
Delegate
Eliminationexposure
Elimination
Totalof Consolidated
period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is
based on information provided to senior management of the Trust.
ASSETS

9.10

8.1

For the year ended 30 June 2018

The Queen
Queen Elizabeth
ElizabethIIIIMedical
MedicalCentre
CentreTrust
Trust
The
Notes to the Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
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8.1
Financial instruments (continued)
Reporting Entity's Accounts (continued)
(c)
Ageing analysis of financial assets

$

10,021,137
15,000
- 94,837
(1)9,435,159

$

10,021,137
15,000
94,837
9,435,159

Not past due
(1,500,000)
Carrying amount
and not
(1,500,000)impaired

425,154
7,751,443
8,176,597

Net increase / (decrease) in cash assets

Cash assets at the beginning of the period

CASH ASSETS AT THE END OF PERIOD

$

-

7,751,443

7,966,111

(214,668)

(1,911,984)
(5,321,917)
-

-

$

1,859,540

1,527,618

1,527,618

1,726,712

(199,094)

2,253,227
1,821,857

(521,377)
331,922

(57,863)
(205,837)
(167,670)

18,281
(58,976)
(462,401)
-

69,326

6,994

2,428,992
2,531,844
3,900,565
2,573,255
(745,815) 18,281
(2,128,802) 6,994
69,326
-

(2,160,696)
(4,914,676)

$

- years
1-5

Past due but not impaired
1,500,000
3 months to
1,500,000 1 year
1 - 3 months

Receipts
19,566,133 19,566,133
Receipts from customers
2017
Car park operator licence fees
2,266,321
Cash and cash equivalents
9,271,061
9,271,061
Other
receipts
2
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
8,000
8,000
Net cash
provided by
2,266,322 191,085
Receivables
(a)/ (used in ) operating activities
285,686
Amounts receivable for services
8,887,160
8,887,160
CASH FLOWS FROM ACTIVITIES OF THE TRUST
18,451,907 18,357,806
Payments
Board member remuneration
(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from ATO (statutory receivable)
Supplies and services
(45,752)
Payments for purchase of non-current physical assets
(341,168)
(168,916)
Receipts
Car park operator licence fees
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities
(341,168)
(214,668)

Utilised as follows:
2018
CASH FLOWS
FROM
Cash and
cash OPERATING
equivalents ACTIVITIES
Payments
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
(a)
Employee
benefits
Amounts
receivable
Supplies
and
services for services

CASH FLOWS FROM THE TRUST
Cash transferred from the Trust to the Delegate
Net cash provided by the Trust

99,114
107,851
Service appropriations
The
Trust does
not hold
any collateral as security or other credit enhancements- relating to the- financial assets
it holds. 107,851
Net cash
provided
by State
Government
99,114

99,114
99,114

107,851
107,851

10,036,137

9,279,061

757,076

(862,545)

(58,976)
(462,401)
(341,168)

2,428,992
2,266,321
3,900,567
1,520,507

(2,160,696)
(4,914,677)

-

9,279,061

9,692,823

(413,762)

2,253,227
1,607,189

(57,863)
(251,589)
(336,586)

2,531,844
2,573,255
(2,128,802)
-

-

-

-

-

-

Impaired
Financial
assets
$
(1,911,984)
(5,321,917)

More than
5 -years
$

2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
$
$
$
$
$
$
Credit risk
Statement
of
Cash
Flows
Trust
Trust
Delegate
Delegate
Total
Total
The following table discloses the Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Trustʼs maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is
based onFROM
information
to senior management of the Trust.
CASH FLOWS
STATEprovided
GOVERNMENT

9.10

For the year ended
ended 30
30 June
June 2018
2018

Notes to
to the
the Financial
FinancialStatements
Statements

The Queen
The
Queen Elizabeth
ElizabethIIIIMedical
MedicalCentre
CentreTrust
Trust

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The The
Queen
Queen
Elizabeth
Elizabeth
II Medical
II Medical
Centre
Centre
TrustTrust
Notes
to
the
Financial
Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes
Notes
to the
to Financial
the Financial
Statements
Statements

For the
Foryear
the ended
year ended
30 June
30 June
2018 2018

2018
$

9.11 Explanatory
9.11 Explanatory
Statement
Statement

2017
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
All variances
All variances
between
between
estimates
estimates
(original
(original
budget)budget)
and actual
and results
actual results
for 2018
forare
2018
shown
are shown
below. below.
Narratives
Narratives
are provided
are provided
for major
for variances,
major variances,
which are
which are
generally
generally
greater
greater
than
5%
than
and
5%
$165,180.
and
$165,180.
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Statement
Statement
of Comprehensive
of Comprehensive
Income
Income

Variance
Variance
Variance
Variance
between
between
between
between
Current
Note Note
2018 2018
2018 2018
2017 2017estimate
estimate
actual actual
2017 2017
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
Estimates
Estimates ActualActual ActualActual
and actual
and actual
and 2018
and 2018
(b)
service
leave
COSTLong
COST
OF SERVICES
OF SERVICES
$000 $000
$000 $000
$00070,639
$000
$000 $00064,711
$000 $000
Expenses
Expenses
235,529
215,509
Employee
Employee
benefits
benefits
expense
expense
2,246 2,246
2,202 2,202
1,958 1,958
(44) (44) 245 245
1
1
BoardNon-current
member
Board member
remuneration
remuneration
58
58
59
59
58
58
1
1
1
1
Depreciation
Depreciation
expense
expense
642 642
556 556
547 89,518
547
(87) (87)76,399
8
8
(b)
Long service leave
Repairs,
Repairs,
maintenance
maintenance
and consumable
and consumable
equipment
equipment
1,815 1,815
1,595 1,595
1,602 1,602
(220) (220)
(6)
(6)
2
2
Management
Management
fees fees
3,300 3,300
2,021 2,021
2,103 2,103 (1,279)(1,279) (82) (82)
3
3
291,908
Other Total
expenses
Otheremployee
expenses benefits provisions
2,544 2,544
1,922 1,922
1,991325,047
1,991
(622) (622)
(69) (69)
4
4
Total cost
Totalofcost
services
of services
10,60510,605
8,355 8,355
8,259 8,259 (2,251)(2,251)
97
97
In estimating the non-current long service leave liabilities, employees are assumed to leave the Trust each year on account of resignation
INCOME
INCOME
or
retirement at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
Revenue
Revenue with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
Employees
Car park
Caruser
park
and
fees
fines
3,911 3,911
2,422 2,422
2,526 2,526 (1,489)(1,489) (104) (104)
5
5
years
orfees
touser
age
65fines
ifand
earlier.
Car park
Caroperator
park operator
licencelicence
fees fees
2,280 2,280
2,266 2,266
2,253 2,253
(14) (14)
13
13
Other Other
revenue
Other estimations
revenue
3,595
3,595
3,717 include
2,859expected
2,859 future
122 salary
122 rates,
858 858
6 long
and assumptions used in calculating the6 Trust's
service
leave3,717
provision
Total discount
Revenue
Total Revenue
9,786in these
8,405estimations
8,405
7,638
7,638 (1,381)
(1,381)
rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.9,786
Changes
and assumptions
may
impact767
on 767

the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Total income
Total income
other than
otherincome
than income
from State
from Government
State Government

9,786 9,786

8,405 8,405

7,638 7,638

(1,381)(1,381)

767

767

(a)
Annual
leave
liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional
right to defer50
settlement
for(620)
at least
12 months
after the 669
end
NET COST
NET COST
OF SERVICES
OF SERVICES
(819) (819)
50
(620)
870 870
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

669

INCOME
INCOME
FROMFROM
STATESTATE
GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENT
111,590
Within
12 months of the end of the reporting period
ServiceService
appropriations
appropriations
744 744
647 647
674125,315
674
(97) (97)
(27) (27)
More than
12 months after the end of the reporting period
AssetsAssets
assumed/(transferred)
assumed/(transferred)
(14)39,575
(14)
- 39,208
14
14
Services
Services
received
received
free of free
charge
of charge
75
75
41
41
84164,890
84
(34) (34)
(43) (43)
150,798
Total income
Total income
from State
from Government
State Government
819 819
688 688
744 744
(131) (131) (56) (56)
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
THE
FORPERIOD
THE
PERIOD
738 738
124 124
739 739
613 613
employees
up toFOR
the reporting
date.
OTHER
OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE
COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(LOSS)
INCOME/(LOSS)
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
Items not
Items
reclassified
not reclassified
subsequently
subsequently
to profit
to or
profit
lossor loss
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Changes
Changes
in assetinrevaluation
asset revaluation
reservereserve
(32) (32)
(32) (32) (32)
and conditional
long service leave provisions are classified
as
liabilities- because
the
an
Total Pre-conditional
other
Total comprehensive
other comprehensive
income/(loss)
income/(loss)
- non-current
(32) (32)
(32)Trust
(32)has (32)
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

(32)
(32)

TOTALTOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE
COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(LOSS)
INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE
FOR THE
706
Assessments
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
PERIOD
PERIOD

581

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

706

124

124

707

707

14,834
145,323
160,157

581

12,942
128,168
141,110

8
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust

TheQueen
QueenElizabeth
ElizabethII IIMedical
MedicalCentre
CentreTrust
Trust
The
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year
ended
30 June 2018
Notes
the
Financial
Statements
Notes
totothe
Financial
Statements

For
the
year
ended
June
2018
For
the
year
ended
3030
June
2018

9.11Explanatory
Explanatory
Statement
(continued)
9.11
Statement
(continued)

2018
$

2017
$

3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Significant
variances
between
estimated
and
actual
2018
Significant
variances
between
estimated
and
actual
forfor
2018
Significant
variations
between
actual
results
with
the
corresponding
items
of
preceding
reporting
period
and
between
actual
results
Significant
variations
between
actual
results
with
the
corresponding
items
of salaries,
thethe
preceding
and
between
actual
results
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages
and
annualreporting
leave
andperiod
long
service
leave
for
services
and
their
estimates
are
detailed
below.
Significant
are
those
greater
than
and
that
more
prior
year's
Total
and
their
estimates
detailed
below.
Significant
are
those
greater
than
5%5%
and
that
areare
2%2%
or or
more
of of
thethe
prior
year's
Total
rendered
up
to the are
reporting
date
and
recorded
as variations
anvariations
expense
during
the
period
the
services
are
delivered.
Cost
Services
($165,180).
Cost
of of
Services
($165,180).

Current
Repairs,
maintenance
and
consumable
equipment
maintenance
and
consumable
equipment
2 2 Repairs,
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual
leave and maintenance budget program included expenditure on updating of wayfinding signage
The
repairs
across
QEIIMC
Campus.
The
repairs
and maintenance
budget
program
included expenditure on updating of wayfinding signage across
thethe
QEIIMC
Campus.
(b)
70,639Drive, these works
64,711
Long
service
leave
Wayfinding
expenditure
for
the
current
financial
year
included
signage
works
on
Verdun
Street
and
Gairdner
were
Wayfinding expenditure for the current financial year included signage works on Verdun Street and Gairdner Drive, these works were
performed
significantly
under
budget
allocation
current
financial
year.
235,529
215,509
performed
significantly
under
thethe
budget
allocation
forfor
thethe
current
financial
year.
Non-current
Management
fees
fees
3 3 Management
(b)
89,518
76,399
Management
fees
significantly
under
budget
largely
due
delays
opening
Perth
Children's
Hospital
and
resultant
Long
servicefees
leave
Management
areare
significantly
under
budget
largely
due
to to
delays
in in
thethe
opening
of of
thethe
Perth
Children's
Hospital
and
thethe
resultant
impact
at-grade
park
parking
collections.
impact
onon
at-grade
carcar
park
parking
feefee
collections.
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
Other
expenses
4 4 Other
expenses
Lower
than
expected
spend
in
other
expenses
largely
due
lower
than
budgeted
spend
on
consultancies,
particularly
in
relation
In
estimating
the non-current
service
leave liabilities,
employees
are
assumed
to leave
the
each year on
account ofinresignation
Lower
than
expected
spend
inlong
other
expenses
largely
due
to to
lower
than
budgeted
spend
onTrust
consultancies,
particularly
relation
to to
external
project
management
consultancies.
Projects
managed
in-house
where
possible.
or
retirement
atmanagement
7.5%.
This assumption
wasProjects
based
on
an
analysis
of thewhere
turnover
rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
external
project
consultancies.
managed
in-house
possible.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years
or touser
age 65
if earlier.
Car
park
fees
and
fines
5 5 Car
park
user fees
and
fines
Lower
than
expected
parking
collections
largely
a result
delays
in opening
Perth
Children's
Hospital.
Lower than expected parking
feefee
collections
areare
largely
as as
a result
of of
thethe
delays
in opening
thethe
Perth
Children's
Hospital.
Other estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discount
rates,
employeebetween
retentionactual
rates and
expected
future
Significant
variances
2017
and
2018 payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
Significant
variances
between actual
forfor
2017
and
2018
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

Employee
benefits
expense
1 1 Employee
benefits
expense
(a)
Annual leave
liabilities:
Classified
as current
as there
is average
no unconditional
right
to defer
settlement
for in
ataddition
least 12 to
months
after rate
the end
Employee
benefits
expense
has
increased
due
higher
FTE
in 2018
2017,
award
Employee
benefits
expense
has
increased
due
thethe
higher
average
FTE
of of
2525
in 2018
vs vs
2222
in in
2017,
in addition
to thethe
award
rate
of
the reporting
period. FTE
Assessments
indicate
that actual
settlement
of the
liabilities
is expected
toChildren's
occur as follows:
increment.
Additional
was
required
manage
transition
opening
Perth
Hospital.
increment.
Additional
FTE was
required
to to
manage
thethe
transition
of of
thethe
opening
of of
thethe
Perth
Children's
Hospital.
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Other
revenue
6 6 Other
revenue
39,575
39,208
More
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
Increase
in other
revenue
relates
primarily
increased
tenant
charge
recovery
achieved
in 2018,
however full recovery not
Increase
in other
revenue
relates
primarily
to:to:
increased
tenant
charge
as as
fullfull
recovery
achieved
in 2018,
however
164,890full recovery not
150,798
achieved
in 2017
owing
delays
in practical
completion
Perth
Children's
Hospital.
achieved
in 2017
owing
to to
delays
in practical
completion
of of
thethe
Perth
Children's
Hospital.
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
Significant
variations
between
actual
results
with
corresponding
items
preceding
reporting
period
and
between
actual
results
Significant
variations
actual
results
with
thethe
corresponding
items
of of
thethe
preceding
reporting
period
and
between
actual
results
employees
up
to thebetween
reporting
date.
and
their
estimates
detailed
below.
Significant
variations
those
greater
than
and
that
more
prior
year's
Total
and
their
estimates
areare
detailed
below.
Significant
variations
areare
those
greater
than
5%5%
and
that
areare
2%2%
or or
more
of of
thethe
prior
year's
Total
Assets
($594,674).
Assets
($594,674).
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110

8
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The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
The Queen
Elizabeth
II Medical
Centre Trust
Notes
to the
Financial
Statements
The Queen
The
Elizabeth
Queen
Elizabeth
II
Medical
II
Centre
Medical
Trust
Centre Trust
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fortothe
year
ended
30 Financial
June
2018 Statements
Notes
Notes
the
Financial
to the
Statements

For the yearFor
ended
the year
30 June
ended
2018
30 June 2018
9.11 Explanatory Statement (continued)

9.11 Explanatory
9.11
Explanatory
Statement
(continued)
3.1
(b)Statement
Employee(continued)
benefits
provisions
Statement of Financial Position

2018
$

2017
$

Variance
Variance
between
between
Statement ofProvision
FinancialisPosition
Variance
Variance
Variance
Statement
of
Financial
Position
made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services
actual 2017
between
between
between
rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the services are delivered.
Estimates
Actual
Actual
and actual
and actual
2018 2017
actual 2017
$ Actual
$Actual
$Actual
$ actual
$ 2018
Estimates
Estimates
Actual
and
actual and
and
2018
and
Current
$000
$ $000
$ $ $000
$ 164,890
$ $000
$ $ $000
$
$
(a)
150,798
Annual leave
ASSETS
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
$000
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long
service leave
Current
Assets
ASSETS
ASSETS
Cash
andAssets
cash equivalents
4,041
10,022
9,271
5,981
1
235,529
215,509 751
Current Assets
Current
Receivables
298 4,041
11110,022
299 9,271
Cash and
cashCash
equivalents
and cash equivalents
4,041
10,022
9,271
5,981 (187) 5,981
751 (188) 751
1
1
Other current
assets
3 298
3 111
3 299
- (188)
- (188)
Receivables
Receivables
298
111
299
(187)
(187)
Non-current
Totalcurrent
Current
Assets
9,573
563
(b)
Other
assets
Other
current
3 4,342
3 3 10,136
3 3 89,518
3 - 5,79476,399
Long service
leave assets
Total CurrentTotal
Assets
Current Assets
4,342
4,342
10,136
10,136
9,573
9,573
5,794
5,794
563
563
Non-Current Assets
Total
employee
benefits
provisions
325,047
291,908
Restricted
cash
and
cash equivalents
16
15
8
(1)
7
Non-Current Assets
Non-Current
Assets
Amounts
receivable
forand
services
(94)
548
Restricted
cash
Restricted
and
cashcash
equivalents
cash equivalents
16 9,529
1615 9,435
15 8 8,887
8(1)
(1)
7
7
InProperty,
estimating
the non-current
long service leave liabilities, employees
assumed
to leave the
Trust each year
on account of(4,413)
resignation 167
plant
equipment
15,846
2 are9,529
Amounts
receivable
Amounts
forand
receivable
services
for services
9,529
9,435 11,433 9,435
8,887 11,266 8,887
(94)
548
(94)
548
or
retirement
at 7.5%. This assumption was based on an analysis of the turnover rates
exhibited -by employees over
a five year- period.
Intangible
- 15,846
- 11,266
Property,
plantProperty,
andassets
equipment
plant and equipment
15,846
11,433
11,433
11,266
(4,413)
(4,413)
167
167
2
2
Employees
with
leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to
take all available
leave uniformly
over the following
five 722
Total
Non-Current
Assets
25,391
20,883
20,161
Intangible assets
Intangible assets
- - - - (4,508)
years or to age 65 if earlier.
Total Non-Current
Total Assets
Non-Current Assets
25,391
25,391
20,883
20,883
20,161
20,161
(4,508)
(4,508)
722
722
Total Assets
29,733
31,019
29,734
1,286
1,285
and assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long
service leave
provision include
future
rates,
Total AssetsOther
Total estimations
Assets
29,733
29,733
31,019
31,019
29,734expected
29,734
1,286 salary 1,285
1,286
1,285
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
LIABILITIES
the
carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Current
Liabilities
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Payables
432
977
432
545
545
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Provisions
216
236 for
20 545
(a)
Annual
leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional
to defer
settlement
at least216
12 months
end
Payables
Payables
432 right
432
977
977
432
432
545 after20the 545
current
liabilities
ofOther
the reporting
period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities
is- expected
as
follows: - 21620
Provisions
Provisions
216
216
236 to occur
236
216
20
20
Totalcurrent
Current
Liabilities
648
648
565
565
Other
liabilities
Other
current liabilities
- - 1,213
- -111,590
Within
12 months
of the end of the reporting period
Total CurrentTotal
Liabilities
Current
Liabilities
648
1,213
648
1,213
648125,315 648
565
565
565
Non-Current
Liabilities
39,575
39,208
More than
12 months after the end of the reporting period
Borrowings
76
90
76
13
13
164,890
150,798
Non-Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Total Non-Current
Liabilities
76
90
76
13
13
Borrowings
Borrowings
76
7690
9076
7613
13
13
Total Non-Current
Total
Liabilities
Non-Current
Liabilities
76 payments76
90be made in90
76
7613 provided 13
The
provision
for annual
leave is calculated at the present value of expected
to
relation
to services
by
Total employees
Liabilities up to the reporting date.
724
1,302
724
578
Total Liabilities
Total Liabilities
724
1,302
724
1,302
724
724
578
578
NET ASSETS
(724)
29,717
29,010
708
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
NET ASSETShave
NET an
ASSETS
(724)
29,717
29,010
29,010
708
707
708
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12(724)
months after29,717
the end of the
reporting period.
EQUITY
Reserves
33,059
33,027
33,059
(32)
EQUITY
EQUITY
Pre-conditional
and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
Accumulated
surplus /(deficit)
(3,311)33,027
(4,049)33,059
738 (32)
3 33,059 (4,049)33,059
Reserves
Reserves
33,027
33,059
(32)
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Accumulated surplus
Accumulated
/(deficit)
surplus /(deficit)
(4,049)
(4,049)
(3,311)
(3,311)
(4,049)
(4,049)
738
738
3
3
TOTAL EQUITY
29,010
29,716
29,010
706
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL EQUITY
29,010
29,010
29,716
29,716
29,010
29,010
706
706

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110
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The
Queen
Elizabeth
II Medical
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Notes
theended
Financial
For theto
year
30 JuneStatements
2018

For the year ended 30 June 2018

2018
2017
9.11 Explanatory Statement (continued)
$
$
9.11 Explanatory
Statement
(continued)
3.1 (b) Employee
benefits
provisions
Significant variances between estimated and actual for 2018
Significant
between
estimated
andwith
actual
2018of wages
Significant
variations
between
actual to
results
the
corresponding
items
of the preceding
reporting
period
and leave
between
actual results
Provision
isvariances
made
for benefits
accruing
employees
infor
respect
and salaries,
annual leave
and long
service
for services
and theirup
estimates
are detailed
below.
Significant
are those
greaterthe
than
5% and
are 2% or more of the prior year's Total
rendered
to the reporting
date and
recorded
as anvariations
expense during
the period
services
arethat
delivered.
Cost
of cash
Services
($165,180).
1 Cash
and
equivalents
Cash
and cash equivalents actual is higher due to remaining F Block Piazza works estimated to take place during 2018 deferred to the
Current
Repairs,
maintenance
and consumable equipment
2 next
(a)
financial
164,890
150,798
Annual
leaveyear pending civil works tender approvals.
The repairs and maintenance
budget program included expenditure on updating of wayfinding signage across the QEIIMC Campus.
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long
service
leave
Wayfinding
for the current financial year included signage works on Verdun Street and Gairdner Drive, these works were
2 Property,
plant expenditure
and equipment
235,529
215,509
performed
significantly
under
the
budget
allocation
for
the
current
financial
year.
Property, plant and equipment is lower than estimated due to remaining F Block Piazza works estimated to take place during 2018
deferred to the next financial year pending civil works tender approvals.
Management fees
3 Non-current
(b)
89,518
Long
servicesurplus
leave
Management
fees /(deficit)
are significantly under budget largely due to delays in the opening of the Perth Children's
Hospital and the76,399
resultant
3 Accumulated
impactas
onaat-grade
park from
parking
fee collections.
Increase
result ofcar
surplus
operations.
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
4 Significant
Other expenses
variances between actual for 2017 and 2018
In
estimating
the non-current
service
leave liabilities,
arethan
assumed
to leave
the Trust
each year on particularly
account of resignation
Lower
than expected
spendlong
in other
expenses
largely employees
due to lower
budgeted
spend
on consultancies,
in relation to
or
retirement
at
7.5%.
This assumption
was based
on an
analysisin-house
of the turnover
rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
external
project
management
consultancies.
Projects
managed
where possible.
1 Cash
and cash
equivalents
Employees
witha leave
togenerated
which theyfrom
are operations.
fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
Increase
largely
result benefits
of surplus
years or to age 65 if earlier.
5 Car park user fees and fines
3 Accumulated
/(deficit)
Lower thansurplus
expected
parking fee collections are largely as a result of the delays in opening the Perth Children's Hospital.
Other estimations
and
assumptions
used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
Increase
as a result of
surplus
from operations.
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
Significant variances between actual for 2017 and 2018
the carrying
amount between
of the long
service
leave
provision.
Significant
variations
actual
results
with
the corresponding items of the preceding reporting period and between actual results

their estimates
areexpense
detailed below. Significant variations are those greater than 5% and that are 2% or more of the prior year's Total
1 and
Employee
benefits
(a) Annual
leave
liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
Cost
of Services
($165,180).
Employee
benefits
expense has increased due the higher average FTE of 25 in 2018 vs 22 in 2017, in addition to the award rate
of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
increment. Additional FTE was required to manage the transition of the opening of the Perth Children's Hospital.

6

125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Other
39,575
39,208
More revenue
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
Increase in other revenue relates primarily to: increased tenant charge as full recovery achieved in 2018,164,890
however full recovery
not
150,798
achieved in 2017 owing to delays in practical completion of the Perth Children's Hospital.
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
Significantup
variations
between
actual results with the corresponding items of the preceding reporting period and between actual results
employees
to the reporting
date.
and their estimates are detailed below. Significant variations are those greater than 5% and that are 2% or more of the prior year's Total
Assets
(b)
Long($594,674).
service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110
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Notes to the Financial Statements
The
The
Queen
The
Queen
Elizabeth
Queen
Elizabeth
Elizabeth
II Medical
II2018
Medical
II Medical
Centre
Centre
Trust
Centre
Trust
Trust
For
the
year
ended
30
June
Notes
to the
Financial
Statements
For
the
year
ended
30Financial
June
2018
Notes
Notes
to
Notes
the
to Financial
the
to the
Financial
Statements
Statements
Statements

For the
Foryear
For
the ended
year
the year
ended
30ended
June
30 June
2018
30 June
20182018

2018
$

9.11 Explanatory Statement (continued)

9.11 Explanatory
9.113.1
9.11
Explanatory
Statement
Statement
Statement
(continued)
(continued)
(continued)
(b) Explanatory
Employee
benefits
provisions

2017
$

Significant variances between estimated and actual for 2018

Statement
Statement
of Cash
ofis
Flows
Cash
Flows
Variance
Variance
Variance
Variance
Variance
Variance
Statement
of
Cash
Significant
variations
between
actual to
results
with the
corresponding
of the preceding
reporting
period
and leave
between
actual
results
Provision
made
forFlows
benefits
accruing
employees
in respect
of wagesitems
and salaries,
annual leave
and long
service
for
services
between
between
between
between
between
between
and theirup
estimates
are detailed
below.
Significant
are those
greater
than
5% and
are 2% or more of
the prior
year's
Total
rendered
to the reporting
date and
recorded
as an variations
expense during
the period
the
services
arethat
delivered.
2018 201820182018 201820182017 20172017
estimate
estimate
actual
estimate
actual
2017actual
20172017
Cost of Services ($165,180).
Estimates
Estimates
Estimates
ActualActual
Actual
ActualActual
and
Actual
actual
and actual
and and
actual
2018
and 2018
and 2018
Current
and consumable equipment
2 Repairs, maintenance
$
$
$ $
$
$ 164,890
$
$
$ $ 150,798
$
$ $
$
$
(a)
Annual leave
The repairs and maintenance
budget program included expenditure on $000
updating
wayfinding
the$000
QEIIMC
$000of
$000
$000 $000signage
$000$000across
$000$000
$000Campus.
$000
$000 $000$000
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long
service
Inflows
Inflows
Inflows
Inflows
Inflows
Statement
of Flows
Cash
Flows
Statement
Statement
of Cash
ofleave
Cash
Flowsfor the current financial year included signage works on Verdun
Wayfinding
expenditure
Street
andInflows
Gairdner
Drive, these works were
235,529
215,509
(Outflows)
(Outflows)
(Outflows)
(Outflows)
(Outflows)
(Outflows)
performed significantly under the budget allocation for the current financial year.
CASH
FLOWS
FROM
STATE
GOVERNMENT
CASH 3
FLOWS
CASH
FROM
FLOWS
STATE
FROM
GOVERNMENT
STATE
GOVERNMENT
Non-current
Management
fees
(b)
Service
appropriations
102 102
Service
appropriations
Service
appropriations
Long
service
leave
Management fees are significantly under budget largely due to delays in 102
the opening
of
appropriations
CapitalCapital
appropriations
Capital
appropriations
impact on at-grade car park parking fee collections.
Netprovided
cash
provided
by Government
State
Government
Net cash
Net cash
by
provided
State
by State
Government
102 102 102
Total employee benefits provisions

99 99 108
108 108 (3)
(3)
(9) (9)
99
(3)(9)
89,518
76,399
the
Perth
Children's
Hospital and the
resultant
99

99 99 108 108 108 (3)
325,047

- (3) (3)(9)
291,908

(9) (9)

Other
expenses
Utilised
as follows:
Utilised4
as follows:
Utilised
as follows:
InLower
estimating
non-current
service
leave liabilities,
are than
assumed
to leave
the Trust
each year on account
of resignation
than the
expected
spendlong
in other
expenses
largelyemployees
due to lower
budgeted
spend
on consultancies,
particularly
in relation to
orexternal
retirement
at 7.5%.
This assumption
was based
on an
analysisin-house
of the turnover
rates exhibited by employees over a five year period.
project
management
consultancies.
Projects
managed
where possible.
FLOWS
FROM
OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
CASH CASH
FLOWS
CASH
FROM
FLOWS
OPERATING
FROM
OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
ACTIVITIES
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
Payments
Payments
Payments
years or to age 65 if earlier.
Employee
benefits
(2,161)(2,161)
(1,912)(1,912)
85 85
(249) (249)(249)
(2,246)
(2,161)
(1,912) 85
benefits
Employee
benefits
1
1(2,246)(2,246)
1
5Employee
Car
park
user
fees
and fines
Board
member
remuneration
(1) (1)(2)
(2) (2)
Board
member
Board
remuneration
member
remuneration
(58) (58)
(58) (59)the (59)
(59)
(57) (57)
(57) (1)
Lower
than
expected
parking fee collections are largely as a result of the delays
in opening
Perth
Children's
Hospital.
Other
estimations
and
assumptions used in calculating the Trust's
service
leave
provision
include
expected
future
rates,
Supplies
and services
Supplies
and
Supplies
services
and
services
(7,584)
(5,377)
(5,377)
(5,574)
(5,574)
2,207salary
2,2072,207
196 196 196
(7,584)
(5,377)
(5,574)
2
2long2(7,584)
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on
Significant
variances between actual for 2017 and 2018
the
carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Receipts
Receipts
Receipts

Receipts
from
Receipts
customers
customers
(1,482)(1,482)
(103) (103)(103)
(1,482)
Receipts
from from
customers
3
3
33,911 3,9113,9112,429 2,4292,4292,532 2,5322,532
Employee benefits expense
Annual
liabilities:
Classified
right
to 2,280
defer2,266
settlement
for 2,253
at least
122,253
months
after(14)
the (14)
end13
Caroperator
park
operator
license
fees
2,280
2,2662,266
2,253
13 13
Car(a)
park
Carleave
park
license
operator
feeslicense
fees as current as there is no unconditional
2,280
(14)
Employee
benefits
expense has increased due the higher average
FTE of 25 in is
2018
vs 22 inoccur
2017,
infollows:
addition to the award rate
of the
reporting
period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement
of4the 4liabilities
expected
as2,573
Other
receipts
Other
receipts
Other
receipts
3,595 3,595
2,5732,573 305 305 305
1,327 1,3271,327
3,5953,901to3,901
3,901
4
increment.
Additional
FTE
was
required to manage the transition of the opening
of the Perth Children's Hospital.
Netused
cash
used
in operating
activities
Net cash
Net cash
in
operating
used
in activities
operating
activities
(102) (102)(102)999 999 999(185) (185)(185)
1,100 1,1001,100
1,182 1,1821,182
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
Other
revenue
CASH
FLOWS
FROM
INVESTING
CASH 6
FLOWS
CASH
FROM
FLOWS
INVESTING
FROM
INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
39,575
39,208
More
than
12 months
after
theACTIVITIES
endACTIVITIES
of the reporting period
Increase
however full recovery
not
Payments
Payments
Paymentsin other revenue relates primarily to: increased tenant charge as full recovery achieved in 2018,164,890
150,798
achieved
infor2017
delays
in practical
completion
of the
Hospital.
Payment
purchase
oftonon-current
physical
and
intangible
Payment
forPayment
purchase
forofowing
purchase
non-current
of non-current
physical
andphysical
intangible
and intangible
4,881 4,8814,881 (5)
(5) (5)
(5,222)(341) (341)(341)(337) (337)(337)
5 Perth
5 Children's
5(5,222)(5,222)
assets
assets for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
Theassets
provision
Receipts
Receipts up
Receipts
Significant
variations
between
actual results with the corresponding items of the preceding reporting period and between actual results
employees
to the reporting
date.
Proceeds
from
Proceeds
sale
offrom
non-current
sale
of non-current
physical
assets
physical
assets
- than
- or- more- of the
- prior
-Total
Proceeds
from
sale
of non-current
physical
assets
- 5%- and- that are
- 2%
and
their
estimates
are
detailed
below.
Significant
variations are those greater
year's
Netused
cash
used
in investing
activities
(5) (5)
Net cash
Net cash
in
investing
used
inactivities
investing
activities
(5,222)(5,222)
(5,222)(341) (341)(341)(337) (337)(337)
4,881 4,8814,881 (5)
Assets
(b)
Long($594,674).
service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
(5,222)(5,222)
(5,222)757 757 757(413) (413)(413)
5,979 5,9795,979
1,169 1,1691,169
Net increase
/ (decrease)
cash
andequivalents
cash
equivalents
Net increase
Net/ (decrease)
increase
/ (decrease)
in cashinand
incash
cash
and cash
equivalents

1

Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
Cash
andequivalents
cash
equivalents
at theatbeginning
of theofperiod
- (414)
(414)(414)
Cash and
cash
Cash
and cash
equivalents
at the beginning
theofbeginning
the period
the period
9,279 9,2799,2799,279 9,2799,2799,693 9,6939,693 unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Cash
andequivalents
cash
equivalents
transferred
from from
abolished
agency
Cash and
cash
Cash
and cash
equivalents
transferred
transferred
from abolished
agency
abolished
agency
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
ANDAND
CASH
EQUIVALENTS
ATEND
THE
END
OF PERIOD
CASH CASH
ANDCASH
CASH
EQUIVALENTS
CASH
EQUIVALENTS
AT THE
ATOF
THE
PERIOD
END
OF PERIOD
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- -

4,057 4,0574,057
10,03610,036
10,0369,280 9,2809,280
5,979 5,9795,979
755
14,834
12,942
145,323
128,168
160,157
141,110
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Notes
tothe
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Statements
Notes
to

For the year ended 30 June 2018
For the year ended 30 June 2018

2018
2017
9.11 Explanatory Statement (continued)
$
$
9.11 Explanatory Statement (continued)
3.1 (b) Employee benefits provisions
Significant variances between estimated and actual for 2018
Significant variances between estimated and actual for 2018
Significant
variations
between
actual to
results
with the
corresponding
items
of the preceding
reporting
period
and leave
between
actual results
Provision
is made
for benefits
accruing
employees
in respect
of wages
and salaries,
annual leave
and long
service
for services
and theirup
estimates
are detailed
below.
Significant
are those
greaterthe
than
5% and
are 2% or more of the prior year's Total
rendered
to the reporting
date and
recorded
as anvariations
expense during
the period
services
arethat
delivered.
2
Supplies and services
Cost of Services ($165,180).
Lower than estimated spend on maintenance work in relation to wayfinding, management fees in relation to car parking fees and
Current
management
consultancies.
Repairs,project
maintenance
and consumable
equipment
2 external
(a)
164,890
150,798
Annual leave
The repairs and maintenance
budget program included expenditure on updating of wayfinding signage across the QEIIMC Campus.
(b)
70,639
64,711
Long
service
leave
3
Receipts
from
customersfor the current financial year included signage works on Verdun Street and Gairdner Drive, these works
Wayfinding
expenditure
were
235,529
215,509
Lower
than
expected
collections
are
largely
as
a
result
of
the
delays
in
opening
the
Perth
Children's
Hospital.
performed significantly under the budget allocation for the current financial year.

43 Non-current
Other
receiptsfees
Management
(b)
89,518
Other
revenueleave
relates
to tenant
charge
revenue.
estimated
not Perth
fully recovered
from
all tenants
in76,399
2017,
Long
service
Management
fees
areprimarily
significantly
under
budget
largely The
due 2017
to delays
in the charge
openingwas
of the
Children's
Hospital
and the
resultant
recovered
2018. car park parking fee collections.
impact oninat-grade
Total employee benefits provisions
325,047
291,908
54 Payment
for purchase of non-current physical and intangible assets
Other expenses
Property,
plant
and
equipment
lower
than
estimated
due
to F
works
estimated
to take
place
2018 deferred
to theto
In
estimating
the
non-current
service
leave
liabilities,
employees
arePiazza
assumed
to leave
the Trust
each
yearduring
on particularly
account
of resignation
Lower
than
expected
spendlong
inis other
expenses
largely
due
toBlock
lower
than
budgeted
spend
on
consultancies,
in relation
next
financial
year
pending
works tender
approvals.
Work
in in-house
progress
has been
recorded.
or
retirement
at
7.5%.
Thiscivil
assumption
was based
on an
analysis
of the turnover
rates
exhibited by employees over a five year period.
external
project
management
consultancies.
Projects
managed
where
possible.
Employees with leave benefits to which they are fully entitled are assumed to take all available leave uniformly over the following five
years or to age
65 if earlier.
variances
5 Significant
Car park user
fees andbetween
fines actual for 2017 and 2018
1

Lower than expected parking fee collections are largely as a result of the delays in opening the Perth Children's Hospital.
Other
estimations
Employee
benefitsand assumptions used in calculating the Trust's long service leave provision include expected future salary rates,
discount rates,
employee
retention
rates and
expected
future
payments.
Changes
in these
assumptions
may impact
Employee
benefits
expense
has increased
due
the and
higher
average
FTE of
25 in 2018
vs 22estimations
in 2017, inand
addition
to the award
rate on
Significant variances
between
actual for
2017
2018
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
increment.

1 Employee benefits expense
Annualand
leave
liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end
2 (a)
Supplies
services
Employee
benefits
expense
has increased
due
the higher
average
FTE
of 25 in 2018
vs 22 inoccur
2017,asinfollows:
addition to the award rate
of the
reportinginperiod.
Assessments
indicate
that actual
settlement
of current
the liabilities
is expected toworks
The
decrease
supplies
and
services
cash
flows
arethe
largely
due to
year maintenance
weighted
to the end of the current
increment. Additional FTE
was
required
to manage
transition
of the opening
of the Perth Children's
Hospital.
financial year and not settled in cash with vendors by the end of the current financial year.
125,315
111,590
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
6 Other
revenue
39,575
39,208
More
than
12
months
after
the
end
of
the
reporting
period
4
Other receipts
Increase in other revenue relates primarily to: increased tenant charge as full recovery achieved in 2018,164,890
however full recovery
not
150,798
Increase
in
other
receipts
relates
primarily
to:
increased
tenant
charge
as
full
recovery
achieved
in
2018,
however
full
recovery
not
achieved in 2017 owing to delays in practical completion of the Perth Children's Hospital.
achieved in 2017 owing to delays in practical completion of the Perth Children's Hospital.
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to services provided by
Significantup
variations
between
actual results with the corresponding items of the preceding reporting period and between actual results
employees
to the reporting
date.
5 Payment
for purchase
of non-current
physical and intangible assets
and their estimates are detailed below. Significant variations are those greater than 5% and that are 2% or more of the prior year's Total
Increase in cash flows relating to purchase of assets is largely a result of work in progress spend on the F Block Piazza project, which is
Assets
($594,674).
(b)
Longthe
service
leavephase.
liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Trust does not
nearing
civil works
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Trust has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

14,834
145,323
160,157

12,942
128,168
141,110
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
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Key Performance Indicators
The Trust Key Performance Indicators
were revised in 2013/14 and are now in
their fifth year of measurement.

Government Goal
Strong Communities: Safe communities and
supported families; and
Sustainable Finances: Responsible financial
management and better service delivery.

Agency Level Government
Desired Outcomes
The agency level government desired
outcomes for the Queen Elizabeth II Medical
Centre Trust are:
1. The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre is
developed as a well-planned, world-class
healthcare, research and education centre.
2. The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre
is controlled and managed in a way that
supports and facilitates a world-class
healthcare, research and education centre.

Outcome 1: The Queen Elizabeth II
Medical Centre is developed as a
well‑planned, world‑class healthcare,
research and education centre.
Key Effectiveness Indicators
The 2017/2018 period survey examines
satisfaction levels across staff, visitors and
other stakeholders (including patients), and
benchmarks these against the three previous
year’s survey results.
The 2017/2018 period survey examines
stakeholder satisfaction levels of the
Trust’s statutory responsibilities relating to
planning and development of the reserve
and management of the shared facilities
and services.
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre
Trust’s annual survey was completed by 509
respondents from various groups including
medical, nursing, allied health, research,
and administrative and support staff; as
well as visitors and other stakeholders
(including patients).
The survey requested feedback relating to the
two outcomes including reference to campus
planning and development, the sustainability
of the reserve, TravelSmart, parking, gardens
and grounds, paths and roads.
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The scale used to measure the performance
levels according to stakeholders was as
follows: Outstanding, Very Good, Good, Fair,
Poor, Unable to answer and No response.
For the purposes of the survey results all
responses of ”Outstanding, Very Good, Good
and Fair”, are measured as satisfied responses.
Key Performance Indicator 1.1:
Satisfaction levels of the Queen Elizabeth II
Medical Centre Trust planning for and
development of the Campus.

80%

TARGET 75%

87%

87%

83%
69%

60%
40%
20%
0%

100%

TARGET 75%

80%
60%

80%

80%

78%
56%

40%
20%
0%

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

This key indicator measures the satisfaction
levels of the Queen Elizabeth II Medical
Centre in maintaining a sustainable access
environment.
The target of greater than 75% of respondents
being satisfied was not met.
The 2017/18 level of satisfaction has been
adversely affected by negative perceptions in
relation to parking capacity on the campus,
with parking restrictions and prioritisation
recently applied to staff parkers. Respondents
also perceived that the campus is not well
serviced by public transport.
Key Performance Indicator 1.2(a):

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

This key indicator measures the satisfaction
levels of planning and development of the
Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre campus.
The target of greater than 75% of respondents
being satisfied was not met.
The 2017/18 level of satisfaction has been
adversely affected by negative perceptions in
relation to parking capacity on the campus,
with parking restrictions and prioritisation
recently applied to staff parkers.
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Satisfaction levels of the Queen Elizabeth II
Medical Centre Trust maintaining a sustainable
access environment.

Satisfaction levels of the Queen Elizabeth II
Medical Centre Trust TravelSmart initiatives.
100%
PERCENTAGE SATISFIED

PERCENTAGE SATISFIED

100%

Key Performance Indicator 1.2:

PERCENTAGE SATISFIED

Respondents from the stakeholder groups
were invited to complete an online survey
via the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre
website and the internal staff email system.
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust
utilised a survey engine, Survey Monkey,
to collect the responses and analyse the data
from the completed surveys. The surveys were
completed during the months of May and
June 2018.

TARGET 75%

80%
60%

60%

40%

44%

51%
38%

20%
0%

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18
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This key indicator measures the satisfaction
levels of the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre
Travel Smart initiatives. These initiatives
include the promotion and dissemination of
information regarding alternative modes of
transport for those travelling to the QEIIMC.

Outcome 2: The Queen Elizabeth
II Medical Centre is controlled and
managed in a way that supports and
facilitates a world-class healthcare,
research and education centre.

The target of greater than 75% of respondents
being satisfied was not met.

Key Effectiveness Indicators

The large variances in all years to the targeted
satisfaction levels can be largely attributed to
the poor response rates and lack of awareness
of TravelSmart initiatives, with 29% of 2017/18
respondents unable to answer or registering
no responses (2016/17: 40%; 2015/16: 40%;
2014/15: 22%). Only 33% of respondents in
2017/18 were actually dissatisfied (2016/17: 9%;
2015/16: 16%; 2014/15: 17%).

Satisfaction levels of the implementation
and upkeep of landscaping and gardens and
grounds at Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre.
100%
PERCENTAGE SATISFIED

The 2017/18 level of satisfaction has been
adversely affected by negative perceptions in
relation to parking capacity on the campus,
with parking restrictions and prioritisation
recently applied to staff parkers. Respondents
also perceived that the campus is not well
serviced by public transport, with greater
pressures on alternative transport solutions
with the addition of the new Perth Children’s
Hospital on Campus.

Key Performance Indicator 2.1:

80%

TARGET 75%

87%

84%

85%

84%

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

60%
40%
20%
0%

This key indicator measures satisfaction
levels of the implementation and upkeep of
landscaping and gardens and grounds at the
Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre.

Key Efficiency Indicator

The target of greater than 75% of respondents
being satisfied was met.

Timeliness in the consideration of
development submissions received by the
Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust.

Key Performance Indicator 2.2(a):

There were no development submissions
considered by the Trust in the 2017/18
Financial Year.

100%
PERCENTAGE SATISFIED

This indicator is measured in terms of the
percentage of development submissions
addressed within 90 days of receipt by the
Trust. It is based on statistical evidence from
Trust records (date of receipt of proposal; date
submitted to Trust meeting; date proposal
approved).

Satisfaction levels of the repair and
maintenance of paths and roads at Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre.

80%

86%

84%

84%

81%

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

60%
40%
20%
0%
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TARGET 75%
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This key indicator measures satisfaction levels
of the repairs and maintenance of paths and
roads at the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre.

Key Performance Indicator 2.3

The target of greater than 75% of respondents
being satisfied was met.

This outcome is achieved by providing a
security service to property on the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre. This indicator
refers to the ratio of cars stolen from the
Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre in relation to
the number of car parking bays available.

Key Performance Indicator 2.2(b):
Satisfaction levels of the repair and
maintenance of At Grade parking areas at
Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre.

PERCENTAGE SATISFIED

100%

TARGET 75%

80%

55%

53%

54%

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

49%

20%
0%

As at 30 June 2018, Queen Elizabeth II Medical
Centre had a total of 5350 parking bays.

Key Effectiveness Indicators

60%
40%

Provision of a safe and secure environment on
the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre.

2017/18

This key indicator measures satisfaction levels
of the repairs and maintenance of At Grade
parking areas at the Queen Elizabeth II Medical
Centre. At Grade parking areas includes all
bays that are not within the multi-deck car
park.
The target of greater than 75% of respondents
being satisfied was not met.

The total number of motor vehicles stolen
from the Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre
car parks in comparison to the total number of
car bays. This key indicator measures ratio of
cars stolen from the Queen Elizabeth II Medical
Centre car parks. This measure provides a
measure of the effectiveness of the car parks,
grounds and security over time.
Target : <0.05%
The target of less than 0.05% was met.
2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15
Percentage of
vehicles stolen
in comparison to
the number of car
parking bays

0.00%

0.02%

0.00%

0.02%

The large variances in all years to the targeted
satisfaction levels can be largely attributed to
the poor response rates with 40% of 2017/18
respondents unable to answer or registering
no responses (2016/17: 38%; 2015/16: 39%;
2014/15: 33). Only 11% of respondents in
2017/18 were actually dissatisfied (2016/17: 8%;
2015/16: 8%; 2014/15: 12%). The responses are
also negatively impacted by the misconception
that the multi-deck car park maintenance is
included in this indicator and performed by
the Trust. The multi-deck car park is managed
by Capella Parking Pty Ltd.
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Key Efficiency Indicators
1 Administration costs as a % of total income
Note: The Parking fee revenue associated with
the Capella and At-Grade car park agreement
is excluded from the calculation of total income
as it is offset by management fees paid under
the Capella Parking Agreement. Administration
costs include employee benefits expense for
administrative and clerical staff and other
administration related expenses.
100%

Note: The Operating cost is equal to the Total
Cost of Service less the management fee
associated with the Capella and At-Grade
car park agreement as it is offset by the
Parking Fee revenue under the Capella
Parking agreement.

51%

40%
31%

31%

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

47%

2017/18

AMOUNT PER HECTARE (,000’s)

PERCENTAGE

TARGET <50%

60%

0%

This indicator is to measure the cost of
developing, controlling, managing the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre campus.

$1000

80%

20%

2	Operating cost per hectare of
common area

$800

TARGET <$500,000

$600

610,739

$400
$200
$0

574,234

457,176
336,789

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

The target of administration costs as a percentage The target of operating cost per hectare of
of total income of less than 50% was met.
common area of less than $500,000 was
not met.
The decrease in administration costs as a
percentage of total revenue for 2017/18 versus
2016/17 is largely driven by an increase in the
revenue base as a result of the inclusion of
CAHS in the tenant charging regime for 2017/18.
The 2016/17 target was not met primarily as
a result of increased non-recurrent spend in
relation to consultants and employment costs
in preparedness for the opening of the new
Perth Children’s Hospital. This was coupled
with a reduction in Trust revenue subsequent
to 2015/16 due to the tiered reduction in license
fees as per the At-Grade Car Parks Management
Agreement and reduced tenant charge revenue
in 2016/17 due to delays in the opening of the
new Perth Children’s Hospital.
Note: Prior year results have been restated
to remove non-administration and clerical
employee benefits from the calculation.
(Previously reported as: 2016/17: 63%; 2015/16:
40%; 2014/15: 33%)
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The decrease in operating costs per hectare
of common area for 2017/18 versus 2016/17 is
mainly due to an increase in common area as
a result of the return of some common areas
previously under development.
The large increase in operating costs per
hectare of common area from 2015/16
($457,176) to 2016/17 ($610,739) was largely
driven by higher spend on repairs and
maintenance, external security, consultancies,
employment costs and depreciation to service
the Trusts increased program of maintenance
works and additional administration
responsibilities. The Campus has seen a period
of significant building development in recent
years and the increase in operating costs
subsequent to 2015/16 are necessary to address
the increased demands on the existing Campus
infrastructure.
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3	Maintenance cost per hectare of
common area

4	Operating cost per gross floor area of
tenant premises

This indicator is to measure the cost of
maintenance and repairs of campus facilities
including roads, paths, car parks, lighting
and gardens and grounds around the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre.

This indicator is another measure of the cost of
developing, controlling, managing the Queen
Elizabeth II Medical Centre campus.

$1000

$20

$800

$15

AMOUNT PER
SQUARE METRE

AMOUNT PER HECTARE (,000’s)

Note: Maintenance costs include employee
benefits expense for maintenance staff and
maintenance related expenses (primarily repairs
and maintenance and depreciation).

Note: The Operating cost is equal to the Total
Cost of Service less the management fee
associated with the Capella and At-Grade car
park agreement as it is offset by the Parking
Fee revenue under the Capella Parking
agreement.

TARGET <$200,000

$600
$400
$200
$0

124,373

2014/15

182,885

2015/16

261,810

246,256

2016/17

2017/18

The target of maintenance cost per hectare
of common area of less than $200,000 was
not met.
The decrease in maintenance costs per hectare
of common area for 2017/18 versus 2016/17 is
mainly due to an increase in common area as
a result of the return of some common areas
previously under development.
The increase in maintenance costs per hectare
of common area from 2015/16 ($182,885) to
2016/17 ($261,810) was largely driven by higher
spend on repairs and maintenance to service
the Trust’s increased program of maintenance
works, as well as a significantly larger
depreciation charge as a result of a change in
accounting estimate. The Campus has seen a
period of significant building development in
recent years and the increase in maintenance
costs subsequent to 2015/16 are necessary to
address the increased demands on the existing
Campus infrastructure.

TARGET <$12.00

$10
$5
$0

12.91

13.28

2016/17

2017/18

9.85
7.25
2014/15

2015/16

The target of operating cost per gross floor
area of tenant premises of less than $12 was
not met.
The small increase in operating costs per
gross floor area of tenant premises for 2017/18
versus 2016/17 is mainly due to an increase in
employment costs to assist with the transition
of the new Perth Children’s Hospital onto
the campus.
The significant increase in operating costs
per gross floor area of tenant premises from
2015/16 ($9.85) to 2016/17 ($12.91) was
largely driven by higher spend on repairs and
maintenance, external security, consultancies,
employment costs and depreciation to service
the Trusts increased program of maintenance
works and additional administration
responsibilities. The Campus has seen a
period of significant building development
in recent years and the increase in operating
costs subsequent to 2015/16 are necessary to
address the increased demands on the existing
Campus infrastructure.

Note: The common area is approximately eleven
hectares of the twenty eight hectares of land.
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OTHER DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS
Ministerial Directives

Staff Development

There were no Ministerial Directives in 2017/18.

Capital Works
Capital works funded by the Trust in relation to
the F Block Piazza commenced in 2016/17 with
completion expected late-2018.

The Trust does not employ any staff.
Staff engaged on Trust-related activities are
employees of NMHS.

Workers Compensation
As the Trust does not employ any staff directly,
workers compensation is not relevant.

Employment and Industrial Relations
The Trust does not employ any staff.
Staff engaged on Trust-related activities are
employees of NMHS.

Summary of Board Remuneration
The total annual remuneration for the Board is listed below.

Queen Elizabeth Medical Centre Trust
Type of
remuneration

2016-17 period
of membership

Annual

12 months

Gross/actual
remuneration

Position

Name

Chair

Steven Cole

Deputy Chair

Professor Peter Davies

Not eligible

Not applicable

$0

Member

Angela Kelly

Not eligible

Not applicable

$0

Member

Professor Wendy Erber

Not eligible

Not applicable

$0

Member

Alan Bansemer

Per meeting

12 months

Total

$55,136

$3,840
$58,976

Notes
1. Remuneration is provided to private sector and consumer representative members of a board/committee. Individuals
are ineligible for remuneration if their membership on the board/committee is considered to be an integral part of
their organisational role.
2. Remuneration amounts can vary depending on the type of remuneration, the number of meetings attended, and
whether a member submitted a remuneration claim. Remuneration includes superannuation.
3.‘ Period of membership’ is defined as the period (in months) that an individual was a member of a board during the
2016–17 financial year. If a member was ineligible to receive remuneration, their period of membership is immaterial to
the remuneration amount and has been defined as ‘Not applicable’.
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Governance Disclosures
Unauthorised use of credit card
The Delegate uses Purchasing cards
(personalised credit cards that provide a clear
audit trail for management) for purchasing
goods and services.
Purchasing cards are provided to employees
who require one as part of their role and are
not for personal use. If a cardholder makes
a personal purchase or a purchase that does
not meet the criteria for authorised use they
must give written notice to the accountable
authority within five working days and refund
the total amount of expenditure.
A single occurrence of use that did not meet
the criteria occurred during the period under
review, with the amount of $115.90 refunded
after five working days, leaving no balance due
at the end of the financial year. All users have
been reminded of the Purchasing card criteria
and their obligations to verify the authorised
use before making purchases. All credit card
purchases continue to be monitored.

Contracts with Senior Officers
At the date of reporting, no senior officers,
or firms of which senior officers are members,
or entities in which senior officers have
substantial interest, had any interests in
existing or proposed contracts with the Trust
other than normal contracts of employment
of service.

Other Legal Requirements
Expenditure on advertising, market
research and direct mail
Nil

82

Disability access and inclusion plan
outcomes
In relation to disability access an inclusion
planning, the Trust relies upon the Delegate
to achieve the disability access and inclusion
plan outcomes.
The Trust recognises that people with
disabilities are valued members of the
community who make contributions to social,
economic and cultural life.
Specific disability service planning issues
pertaining to the area of responsibility include:
• Provision of ample designated accessible
parking bays for ACROD permit holders
in the multi-deck car park and at various
other locations around the campus site
for people experiencing difficulty walking
long distances.
• Provision of a campus buggy service for
people experiencing difficulty walking long
distances.
• Continuous improvements throughout the
QEIIMC for easier and safer access for all.
• The QEIIMC website has been designed to
assist those who are visually impaired with
alternative formats.
• A QEIIMC Guide has been designed to assist
people with disability and is available in
hard and electronic copy.
• Accessible Parking maps are available in
hard and electronic copies.
• Ongoing training as to how to assist people
with disabilities has been provided to the
QEIIMC Parking Officers.
• Public consultation and decision-making
opportunities including people with
disabilities are provided through public
consultation process for reviews of key
management plans, such as the Trust Master
Plan, Landscape Master Plan and the Urban
Design Guidelines.
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Compliance with Public Sector
Standards and ethical codes
As the Trust does not employ any staff, it relies
upon the Delegate, through NMHS, to achieve
the required outcomes in the area of Equal
Employment Opportunity, public sector
standards and ethical codes for staff.
The Trust complies with the relevant Public
Sector Standards and Ethical Codes.

Recordkeeping Plans
In the past the Trust has relied on the WA
Health Recordkeeping Plan. The Trust approved
its own Recordkeeping Plan in compliance with
the provisions of the State Records Act 2000
and this will be implemented via NMHS as
the Trust’s Delegate. Appropriate record
management systems and processes are now
being developed.
The Trust’s archival records are held securely
in offsite storage by Iron Mountain in
compliance with the State Records Act 2000
and the Department of Health’s Information
Management Policy Framework.
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Government Policy
Requirements
Occupational Safety, Health and Injury
Management
The Trust acknowledges, endorses and
commits to ensuring compliance with the
requirement for State Agency commitment
to occupational safety and health and injury
management and the requirements for
reporting in Annual Reports.
The Trust does not employ staff and has
no mechanisms for consultation with
employees or mechanisms relating to
employee occupational health and safety.
However, the Trust has satisfied itself that the
Trust Delegate, North Metropolitan Health
Service, which employs the QEIIMC Trust
Delegate staff is following the Public Sector
Commission (WA) occupational safety, health
and injury annual reporting guidelines for
2018 to 2020 in relation to all individual staff
members undertaking work on behalf of
the Trust.
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